ICPSR Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

Annual Report, 1997-1998

Appendices

Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

ICPSR 4006

This document was previously available in paper and machine readable format only. It was converted to Portable Document Format (PDF), with minimal editing, on the date below as part of ICPSR's annual report conversion project. The document may not be completely searchable. No additional updating of this collection has been performed.

A N N U A L R E P O R T 1 9 9 7 - 1 9 9 8

APPENDICES

ICPSR Annual Report, 1997–1998

Appendices

Table of Contents

Appendix A: Archival Processing Activities	3
Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1997–1998	5
Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1997–1998	7
Appendix B: Technical Support Activities	1 <i>7</i>
Volume of Data Distributed, 1997–1998	19
Appendix C: Educational Activities	29
1997 Summer Training Program Courses and Instructors	31
Appendix D: Organization and Administration	35
ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1997–1998	37
ICPSR Organizational Documents	44
ICPSR Constitution	44
ICPSR Bylaws	46
Memorandum of Agreement	51

APPENDIX A: ARCHIVAL PROCESSING ACTIVITIES

Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1997–1998 Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1997–1998

Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1997–1998

Data collections in this category have been checked, corrected if necessary, and formatted to ICPSR specifications. Also, the data may have been recoded and reorganized in consultation with the principal investigator to maximize their utilization and accessibility. Electronic codebooks have been produced, most in PDF format; the codebooks fully document the data and may include descriptive statistics such as frequencies or means. SPSS and SAS data definition statements have been prepared for most of these collections.

Bureau of Justice Assistance and Criminal Justice Statistics Association

• Mandatory Drug Offender Processing Data, 1987: New York (ICPSR 9565) 1 file

Duncan, Otis D., and Howard Schuman

Detroit Area Study, 1971: Social Problems and Social Change in Detroit (ICPSR 7325) 1 file

Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research and Carroll McKibbin

 Roster of United States Congressional Officeholders and Biographical Characteristics of Members of the United States Congress, 1789–1996: Merged Data (ICPSR 7803) 1 file

Johnston, Lloyd D., Jerald G. Bachman, and Patrick M. O'Malley

• Monitoring the Future: A Continuing Study of American Youth, 1995 (ICPSR 6716) 7 files

Kobrin, Solomon, and Leo A. Schuerman

Interaction Between Neighborhood Change and Criminal Activity, 1950–1976: Los Angeles County (ICPSR 9056)
 1 file

National Council on Aging

- Aging in the Eighties: America in Transition, 1981 (ICPSR 8691) 1 file
- Myth and Reality of Aging, 1974 (ICPSR 7657) 1 file

Newmark, Lisa, Adele Harrell, and Bill Adams

• Victims' Ratings of Police Services in New York and Texas, 1994-1995 Survey (ICPSR 6787) 1 file

Reif, Karlheinz, and Anna Melich

- Euro-Barometer 34.0: Perceptions of the European Community, and Employment Patterns and Child Rearing, October–November 1990 (ICPSR 9576) 1 file
- Euro-Barometer 36.0: Regional Identity and Perceptions of the Third World, Fall 1991 (ICPSR 9771) 1 file

Reif, Karlheinz, and Eric Marlier

• Euro-Barometer 41.0: Trade Issues, Blood Donation, AIDS, and Smoking, March-June 1994 (ICPSR 6422) 1 file

Schuman, Howard

• Detroit Area Study, 1968: Black Attitudes in Detroit (ICPSR 7324) 1 file

United States Department of Education. National Center for Education Statistics

- Common Core of Data: Public Education Agency Universe, 1992–1993 (ICPSR 6909) 1 file
- Common Core of Data: Public Education Agency Universe, 1993–1994 (ICPSR 6919) 1 file
- Common Core of Data: Public Education Agency Universe, 1994–1995 (ICPSR 6920) 1 file
- Common Core of Data: Public School Universe Data, 1994–1995 (ICPSR 6911) 1 file

United States Department of Justice. Bureau of Justice Statistics

- Capital Punishment in the United States, 1973-1988 (ICPSR 9337) 2 files
- Capital Punishment in the United States, 1973–1994 (ICPSR 6691) 1 file
- Capital Punishment in the United States, 1973–1995 (ICPSR 6956) 1 file
- Directory of Law Enforcement Agencies, 1992: [United States] (ICPSR 2266) 1 file
- Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System [United States]: Extract File, 1984 (ICPSR 9162)
 1 file
- Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System [United States]: Extract File, 1985 (ICPSR 9161)
 1 file
- National Corrections Reporting Program, 1984: [United States] (ICPSR 8497) 3 files
- National Corrections Reporting Program, 1988: [United States] (ICPSR 9450) 3 files
- National Corrections Reporting Program, 1994: [United States] (ICPSR 6881) 3 files
- National Crime Victimization Survey, 1992–1995 (ICPSR 6406) 2 releases: 13 files

ARCHIVAL PROCESSING ACTIVITIES

- National Crime Victimization Survey: School Crime Supplement, 1995 (ICPSR 6739) 1 file
- National Judicial Reporting Program, 1994: [United States] (ICPSR 6855) 1 file
- National Survey of Jails: Jurisdiction-Level Data, 1989 (ICPSR 9373) 1 file
- National Survey of Jails: Jurisdiction-Level Data, 1996 (ICPSR 6856) 1 file
- National Survey of Jails: Jurisdiction-Level Data, 1997 (ICPSR 2313) 1 file
- Police Use of Force Data, 1996: [United States] (ICPSR 6999) 1 file

United States Department of Justice. Federal Bureau of Investigation

- Uniform Crime Reporting Program Data: [United States] (ICPSR 9028) 3 releases: 5 files
- Uniform Crime Reporting Program Data [United States]: County-Level Detailed Arrest and Offense Data, 1996 (ICPSR 2389) 8 files

United States Sentencing Commission

• Monitoring of Federal Criminal Convictions and Sentences: Appeals Data, 1993–1996 (ICPSR 6559) 1 file

35 collections 71 files

Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1997–1998

These collections are made available in the format provided by the principal investigator and are generally enhanced with PDF documentation as well as SAS and SPSS data definition statements.

ABC News

- ABC News AIDS Poll, January 1996 (ICPSR 6833) 1 file
- ABC News Between-Debates Horserace Poll, October 1996 (ICPSR 2165) 1 file
- ABC News Bill Bradley Poll, August 1995 (ICPSR 6675) 1 file
- ABC News Colin Powell Poll, September 1995 (ICPSR 6676) 1 file
- ABC News Japan Poll, April 1996 (ICPSR 6819) 1 file
- ABC News Listening to America Poll, May 1996 (ICPSR 6820) 1 file
- ABC News Mini-Monthly Poll, December 1995 (ICPSR 6687) 1 file
- ABC News "Nightline" Clinton Speech Poll, November 1995 (ICPSR 6685) 1 file
- ABC News "Nightline" Hillary Clinton Poll #1, January 1996 (ICPSR 6829) 1 file
- ABC News "Nightline" Hillary Clinton Poll #2, January 1996 (ICPSR 6831) 1 file
- ABC News O.J. Simpson Verdict Poll, October 1995 (ICPSR 6678) 1 file
- ABC News O.J. Simpson Viewpoint Poll, October 1995 (ICPSR 6680) 1 file
- ABC News Powell "No Go" Poll, November 1995 (ICPSR 6682) 1 file
- ABC News State of the Union Poll, January 1996 (ICPSR 6832) 1 file
- ABC News United States in Bosnia Poll, November 1995 (ICPSR 6686) 1 file
- ABC News Whitewater Poll, December 1996 (ICPSR 2168) 1 file

ABC News/The Washington Post

- ABC News/Washington Post Government Shutdown Poll, November 1995 (ICPSR 6684) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Government Shutdown Poll #3, January 1996 (ICPSR 6828) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, September 1995 (ICPSR 6677) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, January 1996 (ICPSR 6830) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, March 1996 (ICPSR 6816) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, May 1996 (ICPSR 6822) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Post-Democratic Convention Poll, August 1996 (ICPSR 2004) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Pre-Election Poll, March 1996 (ICPSR 6817) 1 file

Abt Associates, Inc., and the Urban Institute

• Federal Justice Statistics Program Data, 1978–1994: [United States] (ICPSR 9296) 4 releases: 27 files

Alwin, Duane F.

• Detroit Area Study, 1987: A Study of Greater Detroit (ICPSR 6412) 1 file

American Institutes for Research

National Evaluation of the Community Anti-Crime Program, 1979–1981 (ICPSR 8704) 4 files

American Medical Association Education and Research Foundation

Practice Patterns of Young Physicians, 1987: [United States] (ICPSR 9277) 2 files

Andrews, Gary R.

- World Health Organization Collaborative Study on Social and Health Aspects of Aging in Bahrain, Egypt, Jordan, and Tunisia, 1991 (ICPSR 6250) 4 files
- World Health Organization Collaborative Study on Social and Health Aspects of Aging in Fiji, Korea, Malaysia, and the Philippines, 1983–1985 (ICPSR 6057) 1 file

Anker, H., and E.V. Oppenhuis

- Dutch Parliamentary Election Panel Study, 1989-1994 (ICPSR 6741) 1 file
- Dutch Parliamentary Election Study, 1994 (ICPSR 6740) 1 file

Bicol River Basin Development Program

- Bicol Multipurpose Survey (BMS), 1978: [Philippines] (ICPSR 6878) 15 files
- Bicol Multipurpose Survey (BMS), 1983: [Philippines] (ICPSR 6889) 96 files

ARCHIVAL PROCESSING ACTIVITIES

Block, Carolyn Rebecca, Richard L. Block, and the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority

• Homicides in Chicago, 1965-1995 (ICPSR 6399) 1 file

Booth, Alan, et al.

 Marital Instability Over the Life Course [United States]: A Four-Wave Panel Study, 1980, 1983, 1988, 1992–1994 (ICPSR 2163) 1 file

Bratton, Michael

Zambia Democratic Governance Project Political Attitudes Survey, 1993 and 1996 (ICPSR 2232)
 2 files

Bratton, Michael, and Nicolas van de Walle

Political Regimes and Regime Transitions in Africa, 1910–1994 (ICPSR 6996) 1 file

Brecher, Michael, and Jonathan Wilkenfeld

• International Crisis Behavior Project, 1918-1994 (ICPSR 9286) 2 files

CBS News

- CBS News Monthly Poll #2, July 1996 (ICPSR 2303) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #1, July 1997 (ICPSR 2304) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #1, August 1997 (ICPSR 2305) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #2, August 1997 (ICPSR 2306) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #2, September 1997 (ICPSR 2308) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #1, November 1997 (ICPSR 2309) 1 file

CBS News/The New York Times

- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #2, April 1995 (ICPSR 2072) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, May 1995 (ICPSR 2074) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, June 1995 (ICPSR 2075) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #2, June 1995 (ICPSR 2076) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, July 1995 (ICPSR 2077) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, August 1995 (ICPSR 2078) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, September 1995 (ICPSR 2079) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #2, September 1995 (ICPSR 2080) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #3 and Call-Back, September 1995 (ICPSR 2150) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, October 1995 (ICPSR 6700) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #2 and Call-Back, October 1995 (ICPSR 6701) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, November 1995 (ICPSR 6702) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, December 1995 (ICPSR 6703) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, June 1996 (ICPSR 2300) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, July 1996 (ICPSR 2302) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, September 1996 (ICPSR 2307) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, December 1997 (ICPSR 2363) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times New York State Poll, April 1995 (ICPSR 2073) 1 file

Campbell, Angus, and Howard Schuman

• Racial Attitudes in Fifteen American Cities, 1968 (ICPSR 3500) 2 files

Centro de Investigaciones Sobre la Realidad Social (CIRES)

- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, November 1990: Health and Health Culture (ICPSR 6977)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, December 1990: Religious Beliefs and Practice (ICPSR 6978) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, January 1991: Supranational Identification (ICPSR 6979) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, April 1993: Attitudes and Experiences With Respect to the Public Sector (ICPSR 6980) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, May 1993: Youth (ICPSR 6981) 1 file

- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, June 1993: Political and Economic Culture (ICPSR 6982)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, February 1994: Health (ICPSR 2031) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, March 1994: Attitudes Toward Immigrants (ICPSR 2032)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, April 1994: Culture As Consumption (ICPSR 2033) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, May 1994: Demands for Social Welfare (ICPSR 2034)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, June 1994: Political and Economic Culture (ICPSR 2035)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, October 1994: Orientation Toward Work (ICPSR 6962)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, December 1994: Environment (ICPSR 6964) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, February 1995: Culture and Leisure (ICPSR 6966) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, March 1995: Attitudes Toward Immigrants (ICPSR 6967)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, April 1995: Social Inequalities (ICPSR 6968) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, May 1995: Old Age (ICPSR 6969) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, March 1996: Savings, Family, and Aging (ICPSR 6973)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, April 1996: Supranational Identification (ICPSR 6974)
 1 file

Collet, Christian

• State Legislative Election Candidate and Constituency Data, 1993–1994 (ICPSR 2019) 1 file

Commission of the European Communities

• Euro Health Survey 2: Cancer Prevention Survey, February-March 1992 (ICPSR 6144) 3 files

Corrothers, Helen G.

 Availability and Use of Intermediate Sanctions by Judges and Corrections Professionals in the United States, 1994 (ICPSR 6788) 3 files

Cunningham, George

• Central and Eastern Eurobarometer 7: Status of the European Union, October-November 1996 (ICPSR 2296) 1 file

Davis, James A., and Tom W. Smith

• General Social Surveys, 1972-1996: [Cumulative File] (ICPSR 6870) 1 file

Davis, Robert C.

 Providing Help to Victims: A Study of Psychological and Material Outcomes in New York City, 1984–1985 (ICPSR 9479) 2 files

Davis, Robert C., and Edna Erez

Immigrant Populations As Victims in New York City and Philadelphia, 1994 (ICPSR 6793) 1 file

Debro, Julius

• Research on Minorities, [1981]: Race and Crime in Atlanta and Washington, DC (ICPSR 8459) 1 file

de la Garza, Rodolfo, Angelo Falcon, F. Chris Garcia, and John A. Garcia

• Latino National Political Survey, 1989-1990 (ICPSR 6841) 2 releases: 2 files

Federal Election Commission

Campaign Expenditures in the United States, 1993–1994: Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Data (ICPSR 6658)
 4 files

Flood, Mark D.

• United States Historical Data on Bank Market Structure, 1896-1955 (ICPSR 2393) 1 file

Ford, Amasa B.

Cleveland Study of the Elderly: A Follow-Up, 1984–1988 (ICPSR 6985) 5 files

Forschungsgruppe Wahlen (Mannheim)

• Politbarometer West [Germany], Partial Accumulation, 1977-1995 (ICPSR 6913) 1 file

Gertler, Paul, Lembaga Demografi, et al.

Indonesian Family Life Survey, 1993 (ICPSR 6706) 260 files

Gibson, James L.

• United States Supreme Court Judicial Database, Phase II: 1953-1993 (ICPSR 6987) 3 files

Hadley, Charles D., and Lewis Bowman

Southern Grassroots Party Activists Project, 1991–1992: [United States] (ICPSR 6307) 1 file

Holmes, William, Rhiana Kohl, and Diana Brensilber

Evaluation of the Elder Abuse Training Program in Massachusetts, 1993–1995 (ICPSR 6921) 1 file

Horney, Julie, and Cassia Spohn

Impact of Rape Reform Legislation in Six Major Urban Jurisdictions in the United States, 1970–1985 (ICPSR 6923)
 13 files

Horstman, Raymond, and Jan W. van Deth

Dutch Parliamentary Election Studies Data Source Book, 1971–1989 (ICPSR 6744) 1 file

Instituto Nacional de Alimentacao e Nutricao (INAN). Ministerio da Saude. Instituto de Pesquisa Economica Aplicada (IPEA)

• Brazilian Survey on Nutrition and Health, 1989 (ICPSR 2294) 1 file

International Social Survey Program (ISSP)

- International Social Survey Program: Family and Changing Gender Roles II, 1994 (ICPSR 6914) 1 file
- International Social Survey Program: National Identity, 1995 (ICPSR 2474) 1 file

Jackson, James S., and M. Belinda Tucker

Three-Generation National Survey of Black American Families, 1979–1981 (ICPSR 9288) 1 file

Jacobson, Harold K.

International Governmental Organizations: Memberships and Characteristics, 1981 and 1992 (ICPSR 6737)
 4 files

Kellerman, Arthur L., Frederick P. Rivara, Norman B. Rushforth, and Bela B. Hackman

 Home Safety Project, 1987–1992: [Shelby County, Tennessee, King County, Washington, and Cuyahoga County, Ohio] (ICPSR 6898) 1 file

Kennickell, Arthur, and the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

- Survey of Consumer Finances, 1989 (ICPSR 9687) 2 files
- Survey of Consumer Finances Panel Survey, 1983-1989 (ICPSR 6892) 1 file

King, Gary, Bradley Palmquist, Greg Adams, Micah Altman, Kenneth Benoit, Claudine Gay, Jeffrey B. Lewis, Russ Mayer, and Eric Reinhardt

• Record of American Democracy, 1984-1990 (ICPSR 2162) 8 files

Komlos, John

- Age at Menarche of Poor Viennese Women, 1907 (ICPSR 6804) 1 file
- Height of Students of the Ecole Polytechnique, 1794–1887 (ICPSR 6800) 1 file
- Physical Stature of Georgia Convicts, 1770-1860 (ICPSR 6803) 1 file

Lane, John C.

Voting Results Under a Single-Transferable-Vote System in Malta, 1921–1996 (ICPSR 6657) 1 file

Lanzona, Leonard

• Bicol Multipurpose Survey (BMS), 1994: [Philippines] (ICPSR 6890) 41 files

Laumann, Edward O., and David Knoke

• National Policy Domains of Health and Energy, 1971-1980 (ICPSR 6405) 1 file

Logan, John R., and Glenna D. Spitze

 Informal and Formal Supports in Aging in Albany, Rensselaer, and Schenectady Counties, New York, 1989 (ICPSR 6899) 1 file Long, Stephen H., and M. Susan Marquis

• Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Employer Health Insurance Survey, 1993 (ICPSR 6908) 2 files

McPherson, Marlys, Glenn Silloway, and David Frey

 Crime, Fear, and Control in Neighborhood Commercial Centers: Minneapolis and St. Paul, 1970–1982 (ICPSR 8167) 5 files

Melich, Anna

- Eurobarometer 46.0: Personal Health, Energy, Development Aid, and the Common European Currency, October–November 1996 (ICPSR 6939) 1 file
- Eurobarometer 46.1: Modern Biotechnology, Privacy on Computer Networks, and the Common European Currency, October–November 1996 (ICPSR 6940) 1 file

Miethe, Terance D.

• Testing Theories of Criminality and Victimization in Seattle, 1960-1990 (ICPSR 9741) 2 files

Miller, Warren E., and the National Election Studies

• American National Election Studies Cumulative Data file, 1948-1996 (ICPSR 8475) 1 file

National Center for Juvenile Justice

• Juvenile Court Statistics, 1994: [United States] (ICPSR 6882) 1 file

National Center for Juvenile Justice and Arkansas Administrative Office of the Courts

- Arkansas Juvenile Court Records, 1991–1993 (ICPSR 6808) 3 files
- Arkansas Juvenile Court Records, 1994 (ICPSR 6883) 1 file

National Center for Juvenile Justice and Missouri Division of Youth Services

• Missouri Juvenile Court Records, 1994 (ICPSR 6884) 1 file

National Center for Juvenile Justice and Nebraska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice

- Nebraska Juvenile Court Records, 1988-1993 (ICPSR 6809) 6 files
- Nebraska Juvenile Court Records, 1994 (ICPSR 6885) 1 file

National Center for State Courts

• State Court Statistics, 1985–1995: [United States] (ICPSR 9266) 3 releases: 14 files

National Institute on Drug Abuse

- National Household Survey on Drug Abuse, 1979 (ICPSR 6843) 1 file
- Washington, DC, Metropolitan Area Drug Study (DC*MADS), 1991: Homeless and Transient Population (ICPSR 2346) 1 file
- Washington, DC, Metropolitan Area Drug Study (DC*MADS), 1991: Household and Nonhousehold Populations (ICPSR 2155) 1 file
- Washington, DC, Metropolitan Area Drug Study (DC*MADS), 1992: Drug Use Among DC Women Delivering Live Births in DC Hospitals (ICPSR 2347) 2 files

The New York Times

New York Times Monthly Poll #2, June 1996 (ICPSR 2301) 1 file

Newhouse, Joseph P.

 RAND Health Insurance Experiment [in Metropolitan and Non-Metropolitan Areas of the United States], 1974–1982 (ICPSR 6439) 1 file

Pate, Antony M., and Sampson O. Annan

- Community Policing in Baltimore, 1986-1987 (ICPSR 9401) 2 files
- Reducing Fear of Crime: Program Evaluation Surveys in Newark and Houston, 1983–1984 (ICPSR 8496) 6 files

Popkin, Barry M.

Bicol Community Survey (BCS), 1981: [Philippines] (ICPSR 6888) 6 files

Prysby, Charles, and Carmine Scavo

SETUPS: Voting Behavior: The 1996 Election (ICPSR 2000) 1 file

Reif, Karlheinz, and Eric Marlier

 Eurobarometer 43.0: Cross-Border Purchases, Smoking Habits, and Cancer Risks, March–April 1995 (ICPSR 6662) 1 file

- Eurobarometer 44.0: Cancer, Education Issues, and the Single European Currency, October–November 1995 (ICPSR 6721) 2 releases: 2 files
- Eurobarometer 44.1: Education and Training Throughout Life and the Common European Currency, November– December 1995 (ICPSR 6723) 1 file
- Eurobarometer 44.2: Working Conditions in the European Union, November 1995

 –January 1996 (ICPSR 6722)
 1 file
- Eurobarometer 44.2BIS Mega-Survey: Policies and Practices in Building Europe and the European Union, January–March 1996 (ICPSR 6748) 1 file
- Eurobarometer 45.1: European Union Rights, Sun Exposure, Work Safety, and Privacy Issues, April–May 1996 (ICPSR 6749) 1 file

Roehl, Jan

• Evaluation of the Weed and Seed Initiative in the United States, 1994 (ICPSR 6789) 1 file

Rosenstone, Steven I.

• Detroit Area Study, 1989: Political Participation in the Detroit Area (ICPSR 6410) 1 file

Rosenstone, Steven J., Virginia Sapiro, Warren E. Miller, Donald R. Kinder, and the National Election Studies

American National Election Study: 1997 Pilot Study (ICPSR 2282) 1 file

Sampson, Robert J.

 Effects of Local Sanctions on Serious Criminal Offending in Cities With Populations Over 100,000, 1978–1983: [United States] (ICPSR 9590) 1 file

Skogan, Wesley G.

Disorder and Community Decline in Forty Neighborhoods of the United States, 1977–1983 (ICPSR 8944) 1 file

Slovic, Paul

- Comparison of Risk Attitudes and Perceptions in Japan and the United States, 1993 (ICPSR 6952) 2 files
- Role of Trust in Risk Perception and Risk Management, April 1992 (ICPSR 2181) 1 file

Snortum, John R., et al.

Police Documentation of Drunk Driving Arrests, 1984–1987: Los Angeles, Denver, and Boston (ICPSR 9400)
 1 file

Songer, Donald R.

• United States Courts of Appeals Database Phase 1, 1925–1988 (ICPSR 2086) 2 files

Spaeth, Harold J.

- Expanded United States Supreme Court Judicial Database, 1946–1968 Terms (ICPSR 6557) 1 file
- United States Supreme Court Judicial Database, 1953-1996 Terms (ICPSR 9422) 1 file

Spelman, William

Reactions to Crime in Atlanta and Chicago, 1979–1980 (ICPSR 8215) 1 file

Taylor, James O., Robert B. Wallace, Adrian M. Ostfeld, and Dan G. Blazer

 Established Populations for Epidemiologic Studies of the Elderly, 1981–1993: [East Boston, Massachusetts, Iowa and Washington Counties, Iowa, New Haven, Connecticut, and North Central North Carolina] (ICPSR 9915)
 7 files

Thompson, James W.

Relationships Between Employment and Crime: A Survey of Brooklyn Residents, 1979–1980 (ICPSR 8649) 1 file

Thornton, Arland, and Deborah Freedman

• Intergenerational Study of Parents and Children, 1962-1993: [Detroit] (ICPSR 9902) 9 files

Tunis, Sandra, James Austin, Mark Morris, Patricia Hardyman, and Melissa Bolyard

Drug Offender Treatment in Local Corrections in California and New York, 1991–1993 (ICPSR 6628) 1 file

United Nations Economic Commission for Europe. Population Activities Unit

- Dynamics of Population Aging in Economic Commission for Europe (ECE) Countries, Census Microdata Samples: Bulgaria, 1992 (ICPSR 2200) 2 files
- Dynamics of Population Aging in Economic Commission for Europe (ECE) Countries, Census Microdata Samples: Finland, 1990 (ICPSR 6797) 3 files

 Dynamics of Population Aging in Economic Commission for Europe (ECE) Countries, Census Microdata Samples: Romania, 1992 (ICPSR 6900) 2 files

United Nations Office at Vienna. Crime Prevention and Criminal Justice Branch

• United Nations World Crime Surveys: Fourth Survey, 1986-1990 (ICPSR 6945) 16 files

United States Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census

- American Housing Survey, 1993: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 6735) 7 files
- American Housing Survey, 1994: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 6954) 8 files
- American Housing Survey, 1995: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 2368) 9 files
- American Housing Survey, 1995: National File(ICPSR 2188) 1 file
- American Housing Survey, 1996: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 2369) 9 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1980 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample (A Sample): 5-Percent Sample (ICPSR 8101) 1 file
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Special Tabulation Program (STP) 14A, Special Tabulation on Aging (ICPSR 6300) 1 file
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 4B (ICPSR 6271) 1 file
- County Business Patterns, 1993 [United States]: U.S. Summary, State, and County Data (ICPSR 2343) 11 files
- County Business Patterns, 1995 [United States]: U.S. Summary, State and County Data (ICPSR 2406) 11 files
- Current Population Survey: Annual Demographic File, 1996 (ICPSR 6907) 1 file
- Current Population Survey: Annual Demographic File, 1997 (ICPSR 2154) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, June 1994: Fertility (ICPSR 6704) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, October 1994: School Enrollment (ICPSR 6738) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, February 1995: Contingent Work Supplement (ICPSR 6736) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, June 1995: Fertility and Marital History Supplement (ICPSR 2281) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, October 1995: School Enrollment (ICPSR 6984) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, October 1996: School Enrollment (ICPSR 2364) 1 file
- Current Population Survey: Voter Supplement File, 1996 (ICPSR 2205) 1 file
- Estimates of the Population of Counties by Age, Sex, Race, and Hispanic Origin [United States]: 1990–1996 (ICPSR 2372) 3 files
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1991 Full Panel Microdata File (ICPSR 2036) 1 file
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1991 Panel (ICPSR 9855) 7 files
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1992 Panel (ICPSR 6429) 2 releases: 13 files
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1992 Panel, Waves 1–7 Longitudinal File (ICPSR 6951) 1 file
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1992 Panel, Waves 1–10 Longitudinal File (ICPSR 2037) 1 file
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1993 Panel (ICPSR 6886) 14 files

United States Department of Education. National Center for Education Statistics

- Common Core of Data: National Public Education Financial Survey, 1994 (ICPSR 6938) 1 file
- Common Core of Data: Public Education Agency Universe, 1991–1992 (ICPSR 6918) 1 file
- Common Core of Data: Public School Universe Data, 1993-1994 (ICPSR 6910) 3 files
- Common Core of Data: State Nonfiscal Survey, 1983-1993 (ICPSR 6947) 1 file
- Common Core of Data: State Nonfiscal Survey, 1994–1995 (ICPSR 6912) 1 file
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Earned Degrees, 1992-1993 (ICPSR 6931) 4 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Earned Degrees, 1993-1994 (ICPSR 6916) 5 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Earned Degrees, 1994–1995 (ICPSR 2293) 4 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Fall Enrollment Analysis, 1993 (ICPSR 6933) 4 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Fall Enrollment Analysis, 1994 (ICPSR 6925) 6 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Fall Enrollment Analysis, 1995 (ICPSR 2151) 5 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Fall Enrollment, 1996-1997 (ICPSR 2447) 6 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Higher Education Finance Data, 1992–1993 (ICPSR 6932) 12 files

- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Higher Education Finance Data, 1993–1994 (ICPSR 6927) 12 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Higher Education Finance Data, 1994–1995 (ICPSR 2152) 13 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Institutional Characteristics, 1993–1994 (ICPSR 6942)
 1 file
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Institutional Characteristics, 1994–1995 (ICPSR 6929)
 1 file
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Institutional Characteristics, 1995–1996 (ICPSR 2153)
 3 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Institutional Characteristics, 1996–1997 (ICPSR 2449)
 3 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Salaries, Tenure, and Fringe Benefits of Full-Time Faculty, 1994–1995 (ICPSR 6928) 1 file
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Salaries, Tenure, and Fringe Benefits of Full-Time Faculty, 1995–1996 (ICPSR 2297) 1 file
- National Education Longitudinal Study: Base Year Through Third Follow-Up, 1988–1994 (ICPSR 6961) 3 files
- National Household Education Survey, 1995 (ICPSR 2087) 2 files
- National Household Education Survey, 1996 (ICPSR 2149) 4 files

United States Department of Health and Human Services. National Center for Health Statistics

- Linked Birth/Infant Death Period Data, 1995: [United States, Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands, and Guam] (ICPSR 2285)
 6 files
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1994 (ICPSR 2201) 4 files
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1995 (ICPSR 2392) 2 files
- Natality Detail File, 1993: [United States] (ICPSR 6847) 1 file
- National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey III, 1988-1994 (ICPSR 2231) 11 files
- National Health Interview Survey: Longitudinal Study of Aging, 70 Years and Over, 1984–1990 (ICPSR 8719)
 2 files
- National Health Interview Surveys, 1986–1994: Multiple Cause of Death, Dates of Death, 1986–1995 (ICPSR 2183) 18 files
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1979–1992: Multi-Year Data (ICPSR 6983) 2 files
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1994 (ICPSR 2283) 1 file
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1995 (ICPSR 2284) 1 file
- National Nursing Home Survey, 1995 (ICPSR 6998) 3 files
- National Survey of Family Growth, Cycle V, 1995 (ICPSR 6960) 2 files
- Vital Statistics: Marriage Detail [United States], 1970 (ICPSR 6959) 1 file

United States Department of Health and Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. Office of Applied Studies

- National Household Survey on Drug Abuse, 1994 (ICPSR 6949) 2 files
- National Household Survey on Drug Abuse, 1995 (ICPSR 6950) 1 file
- National Household Survey on Drug Abuse, 1996 (ICPSR 2391) 1 file
- Treatment Episode Data Set (TEDS), 1992 (ICPSR 2184) 1 file
- Treatment Episode Data Set (TEDS), 1993 (ICPSR 2185) 1 file
- Treatment Episode Data Set (TEDS), 1994 (ICPSR 2186) 1 file
- Treatment Episode Data Set (TEDS), 1995 (ICPSR 2187) 1 file

United States Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics

- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1990–1993: Addendum Files (ICPSR 6713) 13 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1993-1994: Addendum Files (ICPSR 2261) 2 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1993: Diary Survey (ICPSR 6494) 16 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1993: Interview Survey (ICPSR 6580) 16 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1993: Interview Survey, Detailed Expenditure Files (ICPSR 6543) 57 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1994: Diary Survey (ICPSR 6711) 11 files

ARCHIVAL PROCESSING ACTIVITIES

- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1994: Interview Survey and Detailed Expenditure Files (ICPSR 6710) 64 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1995: Diary Survey (ICPSR 2263) 16 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1995: Interview Survey and Detailed Expenditure Files (ICPSR 2264) 68 files

United States Department of Justice. Immigration and Naturalization Service

• Immigrants Admitted to the United States, 1993-1995 (ICPSR 2267) 3 files

United States Department of Justice. National Institute of Justice

• Drug Use Forecasting in 24 Cities in the United States, 1987–1996 (ICPSR 9477) 2 files

United States Merit Systems Protection Board

• Sexual Harassment in the Federal Workplace: 1978–1980, 1987, and 1994 (ICPSR 6893) 3 files

United States Sentencing Commission

- Monitoring of Federal Criminal Sentences, 1987-1996 (ICPSR 9317) 2 files
- Organizations Convicted in Federal Criminal Courts, 1987-1996: [United States] (ICPSR 9513) 1 file

van der Eijk, C., and B. Niemoeller

• Dutch Parliamentary Election Panel Study, 1971-1979 (ICPSR 6743) 1 file

van der Eijk, C., G.A. Irwin, and B. Niemoeller

- Dutch Parliamentary Election Panel Study, 1981–1986 (ICPSR 9272) 1 file
- Dutch Parliamentary Election Panel Study, 1986-1989 (ICPSR 6742) 1 file

Voter News Service

- Voter News Service General Election Exit Polls, 1996 (ICPSR 6989) 52 files
- Voter News Service Presidential Primary Exit Polls, 1996 (ICPSR 2015) 35 files

The Washington Post

- Washington Post Federal Election Commission Poll, January 1997 (ICPSR 2169) 1 file
- Washington Post Marion Barry Poll, May 1996 (ICPSR 6821) 1 file
- Washington Post O.J. Simpson Verdict Poll, October 1995 (ICPSR 6679) 1 file
- Washington Post Poll, October 1995 (ICPSR 6681) 1 file

Zentralarchiv für Empirische Sozialforschung and Zentrum für Umfragen, Methoden und Analysen (ZUMA)

• German Social Survey (ALLBUS), 1996 (ICPSR 2005) 1 file

261 collections 1,359 files

APPENDIX B: TECHNICAL SUPPORT ACTIVITIES

Volume of Data Distributed, 1997–1998

Volume of Data Distributed, 1997-1998

The table on the pages that follow presents data ordering and related service activities during the fiscal year 1997–1998. This information summarizes all authenticated activities of Official Representative and individual and unit membership ICPSR CDNet/WWW accounts, requests for special services from Official Representatives and users at member institutions, and requests for special services from academic and nonacademic nonmembers. The information is provided in two separate categories: orders by electronic means (CDNet/WWW) and those for all other distribution modes (Removable Media).

ICPSR distributes several thematic CD-ROMs to Official Representatives each year, as the CD-ROMs are developed. During fiscal year 1997–1998 there were eight thematic CD-ROMs routinely sent to Official Representatives; in sum they totaled more than 3,562 megabytes of information. ICPSR also offers a periodic release CD-ROM service to Official Representatives who have elected to participate in the service. This service provides copies of all new ICPSR study releases from the previous quarter on CD-ROM, which is routinely sent to those participating in the service. During the 1997–1998 fiscal year, over 9,500 megabytes were distributed on the periodic CD-ROMs. The statistics in this table do *not* include the information transmitted on the thematic and periodic CD-ROMs.

Please note that when a zero appears in the "# of Megabytes" column in the Removable Media category, it indicates that textual material was supplied. The first two columns in the table carry codes that indicate membership status: "M" indicates a member institution, "MI" indicates an individual membership at a member institution, "MU" indicates a unit membership at a member institution, and "NM" indicates a nonmember.

M Academia Sinica 32 289. NM Academic Book Center, Inc. 1 0 0 Portland, Oregon NM Accents Publications Service, Inc. 1 0 0 Silver Spring, Maryland NM Actuarial Research Corporation 3 58.8 Columbia, Maryland 0			Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
NM Academic Book Center, Inc. 1 0 Portland, Oregon 0 NM Accents Publications Service, Inc. 1 0 Silver Spring, Maryland 3 58.8 NM Actuarial Research Corporation 3 58.8 Columbia, Maryland 1 396.2 NM The Advisory Board Company 1 396.2 Washington, DC 1 291.4 M AFL-CIO 1 291.4 Washington, DC 210 46803. M University of Akron 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 8 8 Reading, Pennsylvania 1 396.2 8 8 NM American Association of Retired Persons 1 396.2 8 1 4 4 1 1 3 3 1 3 1 3 1 3 1 3 1 3 1	Reci	pient	# Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
NM Academic Book Center, Inc. 1 0 Portland, Oregon 0 NM Accents Publications Service, Inc. 1 0 Silver Spring, Maryland 3 58.8 NM Actuarial Research Corporation 3 58.8 Columbia, Maryland 1 396.2 NM The Advisory Board Company 1 396.2 Washington, DC 1 291.4 M AFL-CIO 1 291.4 Washington, DC 210 46803. M University of Akron 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 8 8 Reading, Pennsylvania 1 396.2 8 8 NM American Association of Retired Persons 1 396.2 8 1 4 4 1 1 3 3 1 3 1 3 1 3 1 3 1 3 1	N A	Academia Sinica			32	289.6
Portland, Oregon NM Accents Publications Service, Inc. 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			1	0	3 2	203.0
NM Accents Publications Service, Inc. 1 0 Silver Spring, Maryland 3 58.8 NM Actuarial Research Corporation 3 58.8 Columbia, Maryland 1 396.2 NM The Advisory Board Company Washington, DC 1 291.4 NM AFL-CIO Washington, DC 1 291.4 M University of Alabama at Birmingham Puniversity of Alabama at Tuscaloosa Puniversity of Alabama at Tuscaloosa Puniversity of Alabama at Tuscaloosa Puniversity P						
NM Actuarial Research Corporation 3 58.8 Columbia, Maryland 1 396.2 NM The Advisory Board Company Washington, DC 1 291.4 NM AFL-CIO 1 291.4 Washington, DC M The University of Akron 210 46803. M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 2 2 46803. 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 2 2 6 41419. 4419. NM Albright College 1 0.4 2 2 6 484. 4419. 4419. NM Albright College 1 396.2 2 484. 4419. 4419. 4419. 444. 444. 444. 444. 444. 444. 444. 444. 444.	NM	Accents Publications Service, Inc.	1	0		
Columbia, Maryland NM The Advisory Board Company Washington, DC NM AFL-CIO Washington, DC M The University of Akron University of Alabama at Birmingham M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa NM Albright College Reading, Pennsylvania NM American Association of Retired Persons Washington, DC M The American University NA Opalachian State University NA Opalachian State University NA Opiversity of Arkansas at Eittle Rock University of Arkansas at Little Rock M University of Arkansas at Little Rock NM The Associated Colleges of the South Federation NM Associated Colleges of the Midwest NM Associated Colleges of the Midwest NM Associated Colleges of the Midwest NM The University of Aukaland NM University of Aukaland NM Associated Colleges of the Midwest NM The Associated Colleges of the Midwest NM The University of Aukaland NM Auburn University at Auburn NM Associated Colleges of the Midwest NM The University of Aukaland NM Auburn University at Auburn NM The University of Aukaland NM Aukaland, NEW ZEALAND		Silver Spring, Maryland				
NM The Advisory Board Company Washington, DC 1 396.2 Washington, DC NM AFL-CIO Washington, DC 1 291.4 Washington, DC M The University of Akron 210 46803. M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 1413 14419. NM Albright College 1 0.4 186. 184.	NM	Actuarial Research Corporation	3	58.8		
Washington, DC NM AFL-CIO 1 291.4 Washington, DC M The University of Akron 210 46803. M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 Reading, Pennsylvania NM American Association of Retired Persons 1 396.2 Washington, DC Washington, DC 15 300.7 515 14541. M Aoyama Gakuin University 15 300.7 515 14541. M Aoyama Gakuin University 2 0 6 411. 316. M Appalachian State University 2 0 4 411. 316. M Appalachian State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 1 Little Rock, Arkansas 1						
NM AFL-CIO Washington, DC 1 291.4 Washington, DC M The University of Akron 210 46803. M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College Reading, Pennsylvania 1 0.4 8 84. NM American Association of Retired Persons Washington, DC 1 396.2 515 14541. 11 316. M Aoyama Gakuin University 15 300.7 515 14541. 11 316. M Appalachian State University 2 0 6 411. 11 316. M Arizona State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Eittle Rock 1 99.5 144 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 144 1866. 144 144 1746. 144 146 146 146 146 146 146 146 146 146	NM		1	396.2		
Washington, DC M The University of Akron 210 46803. M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 2 2 Reading, Pennsylvania 1 396.2 38 384. NM American Association of Retired Persons 1 396.2			_	201.1		
M The University of Akron 210 46803. M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 2 2 Reading, Pennsylvania 1 396.2 38 384. NM American Association of Retired Persons Washington, DC 1 396.2 38 384. M The American University 15 300.7 515 14541. 415 415 415 415 415 415 415 415 416 411 316. 411 416 411 416 411 415 413 415 410 415 411 416 411 415 410 415 411 416 411 416 411 416 411 416 411 416 411 416 411 416 411 416 416	NM		1	291.4		
M University of Alabama at Birmingham 2 0 1413 14419. M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 2 2 384. 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 384. 384. 384. 384. NM Albright College 1 0.4 384. <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>210</td><td>46000 6</td></td<>					210	46000 6
M University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa 3 0 38 384. NM Albright College Reading, Pennsylvania 1 0.4			2	0		
NM Albright College Reading, Pennsylvania 1 0.4 NM American Association of Retired Persons Washington, DC 1 396.2 M The American University 15 300.7 515 14541. M Aoyama Gakuin University 11 316. M Appalachian State University 2 0 6 411. M Arizona State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arkansas at Eapetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 11 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 11 1746. NM The Aspen Institute 2 289.9 289.9 289.9 289.9 New York, New York 1 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 17.3 17.3 17.3			2			
Reading, Pennsylvania NM American Association of Retired Persons Washington, DC M The American University 15 300.7 515 14541. M Aoyama Gakuin University 2 0 6 411. M Appalachian State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Fayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock M University of Arkansas at Little Rock NM University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 Little Rock, Arkansas NM The Aspen Institute New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation Federation Associated Colleges of the Midwest Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 M Auburn University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND				-	30	304.3
NM American Association of Retired Persons Washington, DC 1 396.2 M The American University 15 300.7 515 14541. M Aoyama Gakuin University 2 0 6 411. M Appalachian State University 5 0 415 11038. M Arizona State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Fayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 1 Little Rock, Arkansas 1 99.5 1 Little Rock, Arkansas 2 289.9 1 NM The Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 17.3 17	NM	Albright College	ı	0.4		
Washington, DC M The American University 15 300.7 515 14541. M Aoyama Gakuin University 2 0 6 411. M Appalachian State University 2 0 6 411. M Arizona State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Eayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 5 12 NM University of Arkansas 1 99.5 5 289.9 NEW York, New York 2 289.9 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 291.4 512 2839. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 56 2356. <td>N 13 4</td> <td>Reading, Pennsylvania</td> <td></td> <td>206.2</td> <td></td> <td></td>	N 13 4	Reading, Pennsylvania		206.2		
M The American University 15 300.7 515 14541. M Aoyama Gakuin University 2 0 6 411. M Appalachian State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Fayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 3 300. NM University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 5 289.9 5 NM The Aspen Institute 2 289.9 289.9 289.9 3 300. M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 17.3 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND 10 17.3	NM		ns i	396.2		
M Aoyama Gakuin University 11 316. M Appalachian State University 2 0 6 411. M Arizona State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Fayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 1 Little Rock, Arkansas 1 99.5 1 NM The Aspen Institute 2 289.9 New York, New York 1 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND 10 17.3 17.3 17.3			16	200.7	E1E	14541 0
M Appalachian State University 2 0 6 411. M Arizona State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Fayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 3 300. NM University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 Little Rock, Arkansas NM The Aspen Institute 2 289.9 New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND			15	300./		
M Arizona State University 5 0 415 11038. M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Fayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 3 300. NM University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 Little Rock, Arkansas NM The Aspen Institute 2 289.9 New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND			1	0		
M University of Arizona 3 558.3 796 23416. M University of Arkansas at Fayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 3 300. NM University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 Little Rock, Arkansas NM The Aspen Institute 2 289.9 New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND						
M University of Arkansas at Fayetteville 10 6.2 44 1866. M University of Arkansas at Little Rock 3 300. NM University of Arkansas at Little Rock 1 99.5 Little Rock, Arkansas NM The Aspen Institute 2 289.9 New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND				-		
M University of Arkansas at Little Rock NM University of Arkansas at Little Rock Little Rock, Arkansas NM The Aspen Institute New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation N Associated Colleges of the Midwest M Auburn University at Auburn The University of Auckland Auckland, NEW ZEALAND						
NM University of Arkansas at Little Rock Little Rock, Arkansas NM The Aspen Institute New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation M Associated Colleges of the Midwest M Auburn University at Auburn The University of Auckland Auckland, NEW ZEALAND			10	0.2		
Little Rock, Arkansas NM The Aspen Institute			1	99.5	,	500.5
NM The Aspen Institute New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation M Associated Colleges of the Midwest M Auburn University at Auburn The University of Auckland Auckland, NEW ZEALAND	INIVI		ı	99.3		
New York, New York M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND	NIAA		2	289.9		
M The Associated Colleges of the South Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND	14141		2	203.3		
Federation 141 1746. M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND	M	The Associated Colleges of the South				
M Associated Colleges of the Midwest 6 291.4 512 2839. M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND	/ 1				141	1746 3
M Auburn University at Auburn 2 294.5 56 2356. NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND	М		6	291 4		2839.9
NM The University of Auckland 10 17.3 Auckland, NEW ZEALAND						2356.0
Auckland, NEW ZEALAND					50	2550.0
	1 41 7 1			17.15		
INVITION OF THE PROPERTY OF TH	NM	Mr. Steven K. Aurand	1	0		
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania			•	•		

		Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
Reci	pient	# Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
M	Australian Consortium for Social and Po	olitical			
	Research, Inc.	1	0	37	817.2
NM	Universidad Autonoma	2	39.5		
	Madrid, SPAIN				
M	Ball State University			44	4047.9
M	Bard College	1	0	525	1704.4
NM	Battelle	1	0		
	Battelle, Washington				470.0
M	Baylor University	_	226.2	4	470.2
NM	Beloit College	1	286.9		
	Beloit, Wisconsin	2	0		
MM	Blackwell North America, Inc.	3	U		
	Blackwood, New Jersey			17	578.7
M	Boise State University	1	0	17	37 0.7
INIVI	The Book House, Inc. Jonesville, Michigan	1	U		
М	Boston College	10	1370.5	307	1172.3
MI	Boston College,	10	137013	30.	
	Dr. Anthony J. Savoie			7	67.8
М	Boston University	1	396.2	112	189.9
M	Bowdoin College			101	14015.4
М	Bowling Green State University			102	1573.4
ΜI	Bowling Green State University,				
	Dr. Curtis E. Peet	1	0	5	31.3
NM		1	0.4		
	Bradford, Massachusetts				
M	Brandeis University	2	0	39	937.0
M	Brazilian National Membership			5	57.3
M	Brigham Young University	1	396.2	102	842.4
M	The Brookings Institution	5	3.1	30	3043.2
M	Brown University	13	3.1	485 21	13633.3 113.8
M	Bucknell University Universidad de Buenos Aires	1	396.2	21	113.0
INIVI	Buenos Aires, ARGENTINA	1	390.2		
М	Buffalo State College	1	0	1	38.7
	Burnsville High School	1	0.4	•	30.7
1 4///	Burnsville, Minnesota	•	0		
NM	Universita delgi Studi della Calabria	2	39.5		
	Arcavacata di Rende (CS), ITALY	_			
М	California Institute of Technology	1	0	363	4088.6
M	California State University Federation	46	1518.0	775	19671.1
M	University of California at Berkeley	44	328.8	2410	111156.9
M	University of California at Davis	18	0	528	7277.4
M	University of California at Irvine	8	6.8	224	2537.3
ΜI	University of California at Irvine,			_	
	Dr. Randall D. Crane			2	19.5
MU	University of California at Irvine,				40000
	Department of Economics	4.0	2440.5	12	1392.8
M	University of California at Los Angeles		2419.5	453	6308.6
M	University of California at Riverside	6	1.0	586	35435.6
M	University of California at San Diego	50	2044.3	1647	28945.3
NM	University of California at San Francisc	o 1	29.1		
М	San Francisco, California University of California at Santa Barbai	ra 3	396.2	1069	104394.0
M M	University of California at Santa Barbar University of California at Santa Cruz	ια 3	330.2	5	0.1
MI	University of California at Santa Cruz,			,	0.1
. • • • •	Dr. Hiroshi Fukurai	4	0	12	2.5
NM	Calvin College	i	396.2		2.3
	Grand Rapids, Michigan	•	330.2		
NM	Canisius College	1	0.5		
	Buffalo, New York	-			
M	Carnegie-Mellon University	2	3.0	362	10417.4
M	Case Western Reserve University	1	99.5	66	31283.0
M	The Catholic University of America	8	7.5	199	396.2
	,				

		Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
Recip	pient #	Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
NM	CBS News	1	291.4		
NM	New York, New York Center for Naval Analyses Alexandria, Virginia	7	58.7		
М	Alexandria, Virginia Central Michigan University	5	983.6	30	128.2
NM	University of Central Oklahoma Edmond, Oklahoma	1	291.4	30	0
NM	Centro de Estudios Monetarios y Financie Madrid, SPAIN	eros 1	396.2		
NM	Changwon National University Changwon, SOUTH KOREA	4	1091.4		
NM	Charenso and Associates Morehead City, North Carolina	2	4.0		
NM	College of Charleston Charleston, South Carolina	2	0.4		
M	Chicago Academy of Sciences			10	711.0
M	University of Chicago	6	974.4	1478	31474.8
M NM	The Chinese University of Hong Kong Christopher Newport University	1	0.4	3	229.6
NM	Newport News, Virginia Chuo University Tokyo, JAPAN	1	396.2		
М	University of Cincinnati	11	1254.1	76	1804.0
M	City University of New York Federation	30	1144.8	396	15826.0
M	The Claremont Colleges	1	291.4	228	1025.1
M	Clemson University	1	268.4	130	3556.8
M	Cleveland State University			7	157.5
M	Colby College	1	0	10	314.5
M	Colgate University	3	0	18	186.4
M	University of Colorado at Boulder	9	0	392	51799.6
M	University of Colorado at Colorado Sprin	igs		4 42	23.0 341.1
M	University of Colorado at Denver	5	687.5	1498	19031.8
M M	Columbia University University of Connecticut	2	396.2	137	530.4
M	A COPPUL Council of Library Electronic Data Services		370.2	138	2289.6
М	Cornell Federation	4	268.4	1055	43932.1
	Corporacion Porvenir Bogota, COLOMBIA	2	39.5	, 000	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
М	Creighton University			49	812.5
M	Danish National Membership			10	26.9
M	Dartmouth College	30	0	779	11600.1
M	Davidson College			3	13.8
M	University of Delaware	4	581.2	368	8199.0
NM	Midlothian, Illinois	1	29.1	0	140.9
M	Doshisha University	1	0	9	149.8 14.9
M M	Drake University Duke University	1 3	0	3 445	15668.8
M	Duquesne University	,	U	3	22.1
M	Dutch National Membership	1	0	16	904.3
	The Dutko Group, Incorporated Washington, DC	i	291.4		00.110
M	East Carolina University	5	0	76	6080.1
NM	Eastern Book Co. Portland, Maine	1	0		
NM	Eastern Illinois University Charleston, Illinois	1	291.4		
M NM	Eastern Michigan University Eastern New Mexico University at Portal	es 3	0 581.2	5	62.0
NM	Portales, New Mexico Ecology and Environment, Inc.	1	29.1		
NM	Lancaster, Pennsylvania Economic Research Services, Inc. Tallahassee, Florida	2	792.3		

		Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
Reci	pient	# Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
M	Emory University	10	286.9	220	3343.3
NM	Environmental Risk Analysis, Inc.	1	82.9		
	San Mateo, California	1	0	18	165.5
M	European University Institute	1	396.2	10	105.5
INIVI	Ewha Woman's University Seoul, SOUTH KOREA		330.2		
NM	Fairmont State College	1	0.4		
	Fairmont, West Virginia				
NM	Fayetteville State University	3	974.4		
	Fayetteville, North Carolina				
M	Florida Consortium for Political Researc		2684.7	1011	24080.3
MI	Florida Consortium for Political Researc	h <i>,</i>			
	Dr. David A. MacPherson,	2	0	6	379.8
A 41 1	Florida State University	2 h	U	Ü	3/ 9.0
MU	Florida Consortium for Political Researc Department of Epidemiology and Biosta				
	University of South Florida	8	0	59	1225.0
M	Fordham University	_	_	67	749.2
	Francis Marion College	1	0.4		
	Florence, South Carolina				
M	Franklin and Marshall College			3	0.7
M	French National Membership	_		1	0.3
NM		1	0.4		
N 1 N A	Frostburg, Maryland	1	0.2		
NM	Gakushuin Talara JABAN	1	0.3		
M	Tokyo, JAPAN George Mason University			321	11058.5
M	George Washington University	3	26.8	253	3927.9
M	Georgetown University	4	286.9	86	2870.8
M	Georgia Institute of Technology	7	291.4	92	3520.2
M	Georgia Southern University			13	29.0
M	Georgia State University	16	0	193	8676.9
M	University of Georgia	8	396.2	<i>77</i> 1	13876.9
M	German National Federation	6	0	72	2609.0 144.7
M	Gettysburg College	1	0.4	3	144./
MINI	Goucher College Baltimore, Maryland	'	0.4		
NM	Universidad de Guadalajara	2	39.5		
	Guadalajara, MEXICO	_	00.0		
NM	Hampton University	1	566.6		
	Hampton, Virginia				
NM	Peter D. Hart Research Associates	1	0		
	Washington, DC		47000	6005	100506.4
M	Harvard University	32	1798.9	6925	192586.4
MI	Harvard University,	1	0	2	75.2
М	Dr. Joel Schwartz	1 2	0 0	1	131.4
M	Haverford College University of Hawaii at Manoa	1	0	i	0.3
	Hobart and William Smith Colleges	i 1	0.6	•	0.5
	Geneva, New York	·	0.0		
NM	Hollins College	2	3.5		
	Roanoke, Virginia				
M	Hong Kong Baptist University			5	123.4
M	University of Hong Kong			3	15.3
M	University of Houston	-	056.5	532	52646.7
M	Howard University	5	856.5	51	1000.3
MM	Idaho State University	1	291.4		
NIA	Pocatello, Idaho University of Idaho	1	0.4		
INIVI	Moscow, Idaho	ı	0.4		
Μ	Illinois State University at Normal			41	615.3
M	University of Illinois at Chicago	6	0	882	17708.0
MI	University of Illinois at Chicago,				
	Dr. Glenn T. Fujiura	2	0	101	4002.3

	Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
Recipient	# Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
Al University of Illinois at Chicago,				
Dr. Naoko Muramatsu			6	13.8
 University of Illinois at Springfield 	4	17.7		
M University of Illinois at Urbana	11	582.7	2168	31935.2
M Illinois Wesleyan University	3	0	226	966.1
A Indiana Federation	25	0	408	15558.9
A Indiana University	4	3.1	341	3263.2
M Instituto Juan March de Estudios		•	212	1500.0
e Investigaciones	4	0	313	1598.9
Nowa State University	1	396.2	56 400	269.2
University of lowa	11	0	409	7180.4
Al University of Iowa,	2	0	8	1200 1
Dr. Scott Eliason	2	1500.3	o 51	1308.1 3007.3
/ Israeli National Membership	12	1580.3	2	122.5
A Jackson State University			22	173.2
A James Madison University	1	29.1	22	173.2
NM Janssen Pharmaceutical Inc.	ı	23.1		
Titusville, New Jersey	1	0.4		
NM John Carroll University	1	0.4		
University Heights, Ohio M Johns Hopkins University	7	496.0	371	16573.0
и Johns Hopkins University NM Jones Day Reavis & Pogue	42	92.9	371	10373.0
Washington, DC	42	32.3		
A Kansas State University	5	566.6	25	1434.7
M University of Kansas	4	991.3	38	320.1
NM Katholieke Universiteit Leuven	1	2.1	30	320.1
Leuven, BELGIUM	•	2.1		
IM Keene State College	1	143.1		
Keene, New Hampshire		143.1		
4 Keio University			78	482.1
Kent State University	4	99.5	85	843.7
University of Kentucky	13	3014.0	238	3901.2
NM Korea Institute for Military Studies	2	0	255	333.12
Kyungki-Do, SOUTH KOREA	_	_		
M Korean National Membership			15	55.7
IM L Enterprises	2	4.0		
Greenville, Mississippi	-			
1 Lafayette College			7	173.7
A Library of Congress			2	29.5
Louisiana State University	2	0	263	14475.9
University of Louisville	3	0	36	1787.2
ለ Loyola Cóllege	1	8.3	76	1599.8
1 Loyola Marymount University			10	187.3
A Loyola University of Chicago	2	6.0	92	1682.0
1 Loyola University of New Orleans			1	105.0
NM Macro International Inc.	2	4.0		
Burlington, Vermont				
NM Madonna University	1	0		
Livonia, Michigan É				
Marquette University			2	8.0
NM Mary Baldwin College	1	0.4		
Staunton, Virginia				
4 University of Maryland Baltimore Coul	nty		22	80.6
4 University of Maryland at College Park		978.9	1371	37374.0
41 University of Maryland at College Park				
Mr. Andréw Kochéra	•		6	206.7
Massachusetts Federation	7	0	1035	42690.4
Massachusetts General Hospital	3	0	29	1161.0
Massachusetts Institute of Technology	9	Ö		
Mi Massachusetts Institute of Technology,	-	-		
Dr. Pedro Enrique Huertas			4	173.9
NM Max Planck Institut	4	2020.0		
Koln, GERMANY				
NM McMurry University	1	291.4		
,/		- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

		Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
Reci	pient +	Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
M	University of Memphis	2	289.9	4	143.8
	University of Memphis	2	396.2		
	Memphis, Tennessee				
NM	El Colegio de Mexico, A.C.	2	2.5		
	Mexico City, MEXICO			24	261.6
M Mi	Miami University			24	201.0
IVII	Miami University, Dr. Maureen J. Lage			4	9.8
М	Michigan State University	11	403.6	285	12468.2
M	University of Michigan	92	11841.5	2203	54997.9
MI	University of Michigan,				
	Dr. Duane Alwin			14	157.6
MU	University of Michigan,			4.00	10116.4
	Population Studies Center Data Archive	40	0	162	10116.4
M	MicroCase Corporation	1	1.7	3	65.3
NM	Universita degli Studi di Milano Milan, ITALY	,	1.7		
М	Milken Institute for Job and				
	Capital Formation	1	0	28	46.1
M	Universidade Federal de Minas Gerais			5	17.0
M	Minnesota State University Federation			44	212.2
M	University of Minnesota at Morris	3	0	27	293.6
M	University of Minnesota Twin Cities	2	0	429	37240.6
M	Mississippi State University	1	0	343	3361.6
M	University of Mississippi			206 183	163.9 3109.0
M M	University of Missouri at Kansas City University of Missouri at Columbia	3	0	1045	12585.4
M	University of Missouri at St. Louis	1	0	156	462.5
M	Nassau Community College	,	· ·	12	339.9
NM					
	of Prevention	3	231.7		
	Rockville, Maryland		0		
NM	National Gambling Impact Study Comm	ission 1	0		
NIA	Washington, DC National Multi Housing Council	1	143.1		
MINI	Washington, DC		143.1		
М	University of Nebraska at Lincoln			25	263.7
M	University of Nevada at Reno	2	0	11	272.7
NM	New England Research Institutes	2	99.5		
	Watertown, Massachusetts				
M	The University of New Hampshire	1	13.1	5 <i>7</i>	2299.0
NM	The College of New Jersey	1	0.4		
NIA	Trenton, New Jersey New Mexico State University	5	829.1		
INIVI	Las Cruces, New Mexico	,	029.1		
М	The University of New Mexico	4	0	98	1265.8
M	University of New Orleans	1	0	82	250.8
M	New School for Social Research	2	0	123	7802.9
M	New York University	3	396.2	1140	22690.1
M	North Carolina State University	9	3.1	515	9231.6
M	University of North Carolina at Chapel H		0 0	706	12769.1 1059.8
M M	University of North Carolina at Charlotte University of North Carolina at Greensbo		U	31 31	574.1
	University of North Carolina at Greensbo	ton 1	0.6	31	3/4.1
	Wilmington, North Carolina		0.0		
NM	North Dakota Department of Health	1	37.4		
	Bismarck, North Dakota				
M	University of North Texas			658	1961.2
M	Northeastern University	4	0	260	4718.6
M	Northern Arizona University	1	291.4	1	143.1
M M	Northern Illinois University Northwestern University	9 23	291.4 7.5	53 1699	816.9 62234.4
M	Norwegian National Membership	43	7.5	35	137.6
M	University of Notre Dame	4	0	155	4341.5
M	Oberlin Ćollege	12	687.5	10	741.3

		Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
Recip	pient #	Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
M	Occidental College			3	1.l
М	Ohio State University	10	559.8	1009	9980.3
MI	Ohio State University,				
	Dr. Bruce A. Weinberg	2	0	29	305.7
M	Ohio University	1	0	142	4267.9
M	Oklahoma State University	1	291.4	1.05	1572.0
M	University of Oklahoma	1	99.5	165	1572.9
M Mi	Ontario College and University Libraries Ontario College and University Libraries, Dr. Pierre Martin,	20	1065.3	729	24241.0
	University of Montreal	3	0	68	300.8
M	Oregon State University			57	2077.9
M	University of Oregon	5	0	94	1829.5
NM	Pacific Graduate School of Psychology	1	1.8		
	Palo Alto, California				
M	University of the Pacific			22	168.2
NM	Palmer College of Chiropractic	1	29.1		
	Davenport, Iowa				
M	Université de Paris I	99	792.5	_	
M	Peking University			_ 5	20.5
M	Pennsylvania State University	12	291.4	54 <i>7</i>	5340.0
MI	Pennsylvania State University,			2	10.5
	Dr. Dennis K. Davis			3	10.5
MU	Pennsylvania State University,	-	0	7(2	25115.0
N I h A	Population Research Institute	5	0	763	25115.0
INIVI	The Pew Research Center	1	291.4		
	Washington, DC	2	582.7	1908	86573.2
M M	Philadelphia Federation University of Pittsburgh	6	536.8	325	27183.4
	Point Loma Nazarene College	1	0.3	525	27105.4
INIVI	San Diego, California	'	0.5		
М	Polish National Membership			10	20.6
M	Pontifical Catholic University of Peru			39	411.6
	Joel Popkin & Company	2	4.0	33	
	Washington, DC	_			
NM	Portfolio Management Associates	1	396.2		
	New York, New York				
M	Portland State University	1	0	47	1298.0
M	Princeton University	26	293.2	416	9974.5
M	Public Policy Institute of California	1	0	82	7842.5
NM	University of Puerto Rico	1	0		
	San Juan, Puerto Rico				
M	University of Puget Sound			3	8.0
M	Purdue University	19	1382.5	227	9614.2
M	The Rand Corporation	2	0	39	678.5
M	Reed College	2	0	31	289.3
NM	Research Triangle Institute	1	0		
	Triangle Park, North Carolina				
M	Rice University	_		180	2886.4
NM	The Richard Stockton College of New Jer	sey 1	0.4		
	Edison, New Jersey			22	100.3
M	Ritsumeikan University			22	190.2
M	Rochester Institute of Technology	7	702.7	93	4623.7
M	University of Rochester	7	792.7	778	69310.1
MM	Roosevelt University	1	0.9		
NIA	Chicago, Illinois	1	206.2		
INIVI	Rowan College of New Jersey	1	396.2		
M	Glassboro, New Jersey	13	299.6	719	68891.9
M M	Rutgers—The State University	13	233.0	1	143.1
M M	Saint Anselm College	1	99.5	9	779.6
	Saint Louis University Salisbury State University	2	292.2	3	773.0
	Juniorury Julie Offiversity	4	232.2		
NIM					
NM M	Salisbury, Maryland University of San Diego			62	1077.1

		Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
Recip	pient —	# Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
NM	Dr. Takao Sasaki	1	291.4		
	Tokyo, JAPAN			_	65.1
M	The Sejong Institute	_	206.0	5	65.1
M	Siena College	1	286.9	19	202.9
M	South African National Membership			11	131.8
M	University of South Carolina at Columbia		201.4	232	3818.8
NM	Southeast Missouri State University	1	291.4		
	Cape Girardeau, Missouri	7	582.7	243	15128.0
M MI	University of Southern California	/	302.7	243	13120.0
1711	University of Southern California, Mr. Demetrius Kydoniefs	1	286.9	1	2.3
М	Southern Illinois University at Carbonda		0	43	589.3
M	Southern Illinois University at Edwardsvi		· ·	9	27.3
M	Southern University, Baton Rouge	11	27.3	425	4800.1
	Southern Utah University	1	291.4		
1 1111	Cedar City, Utah	•			
M	Southwest Missouri State University			4	66.6
	Southwest Texas State University	2	4.0		
	San Marcos, Texas				
M	Southwestern University			34	389.6
M	Spanish National Membership	1	396.2		
M	Stanford University	40	0	945	19426.0
M	State University of New York at Albany	44	396.2	1037	167104.0
M	State University of New York at Bingham	nton 6	0	128	4037.3
M	State University of New York at Buffalo	3	582.7	206	5013.9
M	State University of New York at Stony Br	ook 3	291.4	874	15036.8
NM	Suffolk University	2	0		
	Suffolk, Massachusetts				
M	Swarthmore College			1	0.1
M	Swedish National Membership			31	307.1
M	Swiss National Membership, University	of			
	Basle			11	92.4
M	Swiss National Membership, University	of			
	Geneva	1	0		
M	Swiss National Membership, Graduate				
	Institute of International Studies	1	0		
M	Swiss National Membership, University			4.4	170 2
	Zurich	1_	0	14	170.3
M	Syracuse University	5	683.0	204	5738.2
NM	University of Tampa	2	3.5		
	Tampa, Florida	2	0	121	1757 4
M	Temple University	3	0	131	1757.4
M	University of Tennessee at Knoxville		11510	545	3087.1
M	Texas A& M University	6	1151.9	535	11479.0
MM	Texas A& M University, Corpus Christi	2	3.5		
	Corpus Christi, Texas	10	016.3	00	1271 4
M	Texas Tech University	10	816.3	90	1271.4
M	University of Texas at Arlington	1	0	93	737.5
M	University of Texas at Austin	9	396.2	1499	15363.8
M	University of Texas at Dallas	1	20.1	16	2153.7
MM	University of Texas at San Antonio	1	29.1		
h.4	San Antonio, Texas			0.6	200.2
M	University of Tolode	1	Λ	86 257	299.3
M	University of Toledo	1	0	357	436.9
INIM	Towson State University	1	3.1		
NIA 4	Towson, Maryland	2	2 5		
MIM	Transylvania University	2	3.5		
	Lexington, Kentucky	-7	^	27	420.2
M	Trinity College	7	206.2	37	428.3
INIM	Trinity College, Dublin	1	396.2		
М	Dublin, IRELAND Tufts University			11	400.8
/VI	Tufts University	_	0	242	5610.7
M	Tulane University United States Department of Commerce	5 13	147.0	272	3010.7

TECHNICAL SUPPORT ACTIVITIES

		Removable Media		CDNet/WWW	
Reci	pient	# Datasets	# Megabytes	# Datasets	# Megabytes
M	United States Naval Academy			15	691.5
	United States Department of Veterans A	Affairs 1	4.4		
	Washington, DC				
NM	UES Inc.	2	4.0		
h 4	Dayton, Ohio	1	396.2	4	22.3
M M	Union College United Kingdom National Membership		0	170	1101.2
	University College Dublin	, j	396.2	170	1101.2
	Dublin, IRELAND				
NM	The Urban Institute	3	58.8		
	Washington, DC			5	3.8
M	Ursinus College United States Department of Health an	d		3	3.0
INIVI	United States Department of Health an Human Services	11	23.5		
	Washington, DC	• • •	2010		
NM	United States Department of Justice	1	14.0		
	Washington, DC				40444
M	Utah State University		0	16	1814.1
M	University of Utah	1	0 0	352 758	5191.1 8734.4
M M	Vanderbilt University Vassar College	1	U	20	142.5
M	University of Vermont	1	0	13	113.5
M	Virginia Commonwealth University	·	•	159	938.7
M	Virginia Federation	5	0	1335	28245.8
M	Virginia Polytechnic Institute and				
	State University	1	286.9	227	11783.0
NM	Virginia Wesleyan College	1	0		
М	Norfolk, Virginia Wake Forest University	2	0	69	287.9
	Wartburg College	1	0.5	03	207.13
	Waverly, Iowa				
NM	Washington and Lee University	2	3.6		
	Lexington, Virginia	2	260.4	176	2260.0
M	Washington State University	3 36	268.4	176 658	2369.9 26185.6
M M	Washington University University of Washington	50 5	0 268.4	378	6800.8
M	Wayne State University	4	0	928	123447.4
M	Wellesley College	6	7.5	1	10.3
M	Wesleyan University			675	23552.3
M	West Virginia University			14	92.9
NM	Western Connecticut State University	1	291.4		
М	Danbury, Connecticut			12	415.0
M	Western Illinois University Western Kentucky University			1	0.1
M	Western Michigan University	3	12.5	6	2855.1
M	Western Washington University	1	0	7	109.4
M	Wheaton College	3	0	23	245.8
M	Wichita State University	11	99.5	205	4186.7
M	Williams College			1	0.1
M M	University of Wisconsin at Eau Claire	32	4297.2	28 999	495.2 48089.6
M	University of Wisconsin at Madison University of Wisconsin at Milwaukee	1	396.2	110	2508.7
М	University of Wisconsin at Parkside	•	330.2	44	16.4
NM		1	0.4		
	River Falls, Wisconsin				
M	Wittenberg University	_		1	7.1
NM	Worcester Polytechnic Institute	1	0.4		
М	Worcester, Massachusetts Wright State University	3	0	4	808.0
M	Wright State University The University of Wyoming	8	0	15	748.6
M	Yale University	26	1777. 4	158	1576.4
	,	•		•	

Removable Media Totals

Total Number of Institutions:298Total Number of Datasets:1,725Total Number of Megabytes:85,364.1

CDNet/WWW Totals

Total Number of Institutions:280Total Number of Datasets:77,017Total Number of Megabytes:2,506,014.7

Grand Totals

Total Number of Institutions:401Total Number of Datasets:78,742Total Number of Megabytes:2,591,378.8

APPENDIX C: EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES

1997 Summer Training Program Courses and Instructors

1997 Summer Program Courses

First Session: June 23-July 17

Lectures

Basic Mathematics • Stephen Bringardner, Mathematics, Washtenaw Community College

Mathematics for Social Scientists • James Dowdy, Mathematics, St. Louis University

Introduction to Computing • Michael Hawthorne, Political Science, Pembroke State University

Workshops

Introduction to Statistics and Data Analysis I • Jack Wilson, Mathematics, University of North Carolina, Asheville

Introduction to Regression Analysis • Saundra Schneider, Government and International Studies, University of South Carolina

Regression Analysis • Timothy McDaniel, School of Science, Buena Vista University

Regression Analysis • Laura Koehly, Psychology, University of Iowa

Multivariate Statistical Methods • Ulf Bockenholt, Psychology, University of Illinois

Scaling and Dimensional Analysis • William Jacoby, Government and International Studies, University of South Carolina

Quantitative Historical Analysis • Margo Anderson, History, University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee

Mathematical Models: Game Theory • Alastair Smith, Political Science, Washington University

Generalized Linear Models (Maximum Likelihood Estimation)

◆ Charles Franklin, Political Science, University of Wisconsin, and Nancy Burns, University of Michigan

Spatial Analysis/Geographic Information Systems • Luc Anselin, Regional Research Institute, West Virginia University

The Study of Aging: Use of Multiple Data Sets (June 2–6) • Richard Campbell, Sociology, University of Illinois, Chicago

Categorical Data Analysis: Introduction to Regression Models for Discrete Outcomes (June 9–13) • Scott Long, Sociology, Indiana University

Advanced Categorical Data Analysis: Models for Longitudinal, Multi-Strata, and Multi-Level Designs (June 16–20) ◆ Michael Berbaum, Institute for Social Science Research, University of Alabama

Network Analysis (June 16-20) • Stanley Wasserman, Psychology, University of Illinois

Criminal Justice Methodology and Analysis: Longitudinal Data Analysis (June 23–27) • James Trudeau, National Institute of Justice, and guest speakers

Hierarchical Linear Models (July 7-11) ◆ Stephen Raudenbush, Education, Michigan State University

Second Session: July 21-August 15

Lectures

Nonlinear Systems: Chaos and Scientific Visualization • Diana Richards, Political Science, University of Minnesota, and Kaenan Hertz, Macro International, Inc.

Matrix Algebra • Timothy McDaniel, School of Science, Buena Vista University

Introduction to Computing • Regina Baker, Political Science, University of Michigan

Dynamic and Longitudinal Analysis • Richard Campbell, Sociology, University of Illinois, Chicago (Panel Analysis); Mark Hayward, Sociology, Pennsylvania State University (Event History Analysis); Rick Riolo, Physics, University of Michigan (Adaptive Systems); and Walter Labys, Economics, West Virginia University (Understanding Time Series Tests)

Workshops

Simultaneous Equation Models • Robert Luskin, Political Science, University of Texas

Regression Analysis • Brian Pollins, Political Science, Ohio State University

Time Series Analysis • John Williams, Political Science, Indiana University

Introduction to Statistics and Data Analysis II • Merle Feldbaum, Political Science, University of Michigan

Categorical Data Analysis • David Cross, Psychology, Texas Christian University

"LISREL" Models: General Structural Equations • Douglas Baer, Sociology, Western Ontario University

Mathematical Models: Rational Choice • James Johnson, Political Science, University of Rochester

Advanced Analysis of Variance: Design and Analysis of Experiments • Michael Berbaum, Institute for Social Science Research, University of Alabama

Generalized Linear Models (Advanced Maximum Likelihood Estimation) • Charles Franklin, Political Science, University of Wisconsin; Neal Beck, University of California, San Diego; Jonathan Nagler, University of California, Riverside; and Michael Alvarez, California Institute of Technology

Quantitative Analysis of Crime and Criminal Justice • James Lynch, Law and Society, American University

General Structural Equation ("LISREL") Models: An Introduction (July 21–25) ◆ Kenneth Bollen, Sociology, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

General Structural Equation ("LISREL") Models: Intermediate Topics (July 28–August 1)

◆ Kenneth Bollen, Sociology, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

Research on Mental Health Services for Youth and Their Families (July 28–August 1) ● Scott Henggler, Psychiatry, Medical University of South Carolina

Modeling Response Data: Surveys, Attitudes, Testing (August 11–15) ● Terry Ackerman, Educational Psychology, University of Illinois

The Hubert M. Blalock, Jr., Memorial Lectures on Advanced Topics in Social Research

Statistical Graphics, Regression Diagnostics, and Nonparametric Regression (June 30–July 4) • John Fox, Sociology, McMaster University

Resampling Techniques: Bootstrap Methods for Data Analysis (June 30–July 4) • Robert Stine, Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania

Interactive Cluster Analysis and Data Visualization (July 7–11) • Werner Stuetzle, Statistics, University of Washington

Statistical Graphics for Univariate and Bivariate Data (July 14–15) • William Jacoby, Department of Government and International Studies, University of South Carolina

Missing Data Analysis: Analysis of Data With Incomplete Observations (July 30–31) ● Trivellore Raghunathan, Department of Biostatistics, University of Michigan

Bayesian Statistical Analysis (August 5) • Trivellore Raghunathan, Department of Biostatistics, University of Michigan

APPENDIX D: ORGANIZATION & ADMINISTRATION

ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1997–1998

ICPSR Organizational Documents

ICPSR Constitution

ICPSR Bylaws

Memorandum of Agreement

Note that the organizational documents provided here are the current versions (see the dates at the top of each document), and thus reflect the new reporting arrangement between ICPSR and ISR. For the organizational documents that were actually in effect for the 1997–1998 year, see the 1996–1997 Annual Report Appendices.

ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1997–1998

Cheng-Yi Lin Academia Sinica ACCOLEDS Federation—A COPPUL Consortium of Library Electronic Data Services Federation: Chuck Humphrey *University of Alberta University of British Columbia Mary Luebbe Sharon Neary University of Calgary Phyllis Ross Dalhousie University Barbara Marshalsay University of Lethbridge Garry Strike Elizabeth Hamilton University of Manitoba University of New Brunswick University of Northern British Columbia Darrell Bailie University of Regina Marilyn Andrews University of Saskatchewan Darlene Fichter Simon Fraser University Walter G. Piovesan Fran Rose University of Victoria Steve Aby University of Akron University of Alabama, Birmingham C. Diann Weatherly Michael Berbaum University of Alabama, Tuscaloosa Timothy Keith Avinash Singh Bhati Alfred University American University Koichiro Oishi Aoyama Gakuin University Joel Thompson Appalachian State University Arizona State University Patrick Kenney Nancy Henkle Ken Schriner University of Arizona University of Arkansas, Fayetteville University of Arkansas, Little Rock Samuel Covington Associated Colleges of the Midwest/Great Lakes Colleges Federation: *Lawrence University Kathy Isaacson Carleton College Paula Lackie Matt Hart Colorado College William Bishop Denison University Carl Singer DePauw University Barbara Trish Grinnell College Hope College Carl Heideman Kalamazoo College Knox College Ann Haight Michael Frank Macalester College Terry Boychuk Ohio Wesleyan University Robert Gitter Wabash College Charles Blaich College of Wooster Karen Beckwith Associated Colleges of the South Federation:
*Rollins College Donald Davison Birmingham-Southern College Guy Dalto Furman University Stephen Richardson Robert W. Frizzell Hendrix College Morehouse College Obie Clayton Daniel Palazzolo University of Richmond Charles Donald Brockett University of the South John Bigley Edward C. Roy, Jr. Southwestern University Trinity University Australian Consortium for Social and Political Research Inc.: Roger Jones F. Jones G. Hugo Australian National University University of Adelaide Australian Catholic University M. Joyce University of Canberra H. Oxley University of Central Queensland I. Litster Charles Sturt University S. Latham Curtin University of Technology D. Charnock Deakin University K. Ross Edith Cowan University R. Underwood Flinders University of South Australia D. DeBats D. Caird Griffith University James Cook University of Northern Queensland R. Peterson La Trobe University B. Graetz Macquarie University M. Goot University of Melbourne B. Headey

P. Griffin

H. Gold

Melbourne Royal Institute of Technology

Monash University

Murdoch University University of New England University of New South Wales University of Newcastle Northern Territory University University of Queensland Queensland Institute of Technology University of South Australia Southern Cross University Swinburne University of Technology University of Sydney

University of Tasmania University of Technology, Sydney Victoria University of Technology

University of Western Australia University of Western Sydney University of Wollongong

Ball State University Bard College **Bates College Baylor University Boise State University** Boston College Boston University

Bowdoin College Bowling Green State University

Brandeis University

Brazilian National Membership:

*State University of Campinas Brigham Young University Brookings Institution

Brown University **Bucknell University** Buffalo State College

University of California, Berkeley University of California, Davis University of California, Irvine University of California, Los Angeles University of California, Riverside

University of California, San Diego University of California, Santa Barbara University of California, Santa Cruz University of Southern California

California State Universities Federation:

*California State University, Los Angeles California State University, Bakersfield California State University, Chico

California State University, Dominguez Hills

California State University, Fresno California State University, Fullerton California State University, Hayward Humboldt State University

California State University, Long Beach California State University, Northridge

California State Polytechnic University, Pomona

California State University, Sacramento California State University, San Bernardino

San Diego State University San Francisco State University

San Jose State University
California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo

California State University, San Marcos

Sonoma State University California Institute of Technology Carnegie Mellon University Case Western Reserve University Catholic University of America Catholic University of Uruguay Central Michigan University Centro de Investigaciones Sociologicas

University of Chicago Chicago Academy of Sciences Chinese University of Hong Kong University of Cincinnati

R. Straton E. Papadakis A. Daniel T. Leahy B. Tyler J. Western P. Harrison M. Brittain L. Brooks J. Pidgeon R Tiffen J. Chang J. Crawford W. Karnilowicz C. Johnstone N. Thompson J. Shipp Ronald Johnstone Triveni Kuchi

Laura Juraska Lawrence G. Felice Laura Bond Barbara Mento Annemette Sorensen

Penny Schroeder Floris Wood Susan Reynold

Rachel Meneguello David B. Magleby Sallyjune F. Kuka Donna Souza Dot Thompson Carl Backman Ilona Einowski Jean Stratford

Daniel C. Tsang Elizabeth Stephenson Robert Hanneman

Jim Jacobs Joan R. Murdoch William Hyder Ann Gordon

Colin Campbell James Ross Jon S. Ebeling Margaret Blue Edward Nelson Rae Newton Nan Chico JeDon Emenhiser Frank Gossette Gene Turner John L. Korey Ted Lascher Elliott Barkan Nadine Misiaszek David Tabb Richard Taketa Richard A. Shaffer Richard Serpe Donald Dixon Kathy Johnson Paul Neuhaus Harry Berger Douglas Sloane Jose Arocena

Annette Haines Pilar Del Castillo Vera Michael Dawson

Jon D. Miller Y.C. Leung Alfred Tuchfarber

City University of New York Federation: *Graduate School and University Center Baruch College Brooklyn College City College Hunter College John Jay College of Criminal Justice Herbert H. Lehman College Queens College Staten Island York College Claremont Graduate School Clemson University Cleveland State University Colby College Colgate University University of Colorado, Boulder University of Colorado, Denver Columbia University University of Connecticut Cornell Federation: *Cornell University Hamilton Collegé Creighton University Danish National Membership: *Odense University Aalborg University Center University of Aarhus University of Copenhagen Roskilde University Center Technical University of Denmark Dartmouth College Davidson College University of Delaware DePaul University Doshisha University Drake University Drew University Duke University Duquesne University Dutch National Membership: *Steinmetz Archives, SWIDOC University of Amsterdam University of Brabant Erasmus University University of Groningen University of Leiden Nederlands Studiecentrum Criminaliteit en Rechtshandhaving Nederlandse Organisatie voor Wetenschappelijk Onderzoek Wetenschappelijk Statistisch Agentschap University of Nijmegen University of Twente University of Utrecht East Carolina University Eastern Michigan University Emory University European University Institute Federal University of Minas Gerais Florida Consortium for Political Research: *University of Florida Barry University University of Central Florida Florida Atlantic University Florida International University Florida State University University of Miami University of South Florida Fordham University Franklin and Marshall College French National Membership *Banque de Données Socio-Politiques (CIDSP/BDSP, CNRS)

University of Grenoble

George Mason University

James Haggard Bliss Siman Howard Spivak Jeffrey Rosen David Gallagher Richard W. Lovely William A. Bosworth Andrew Beveridge Zafar Ahmad Richard Boris Thom Kerr Sandi Piazza Henry York Debra Barbezat Kevin Rask James L. Little Laura M. Argys Gregory Haley Everett C. Ladd, Jr.

Ann S. Gray Lynn Mayo Audrey Larkin

Hans Jorgen Marker

Gayle Poinsette Mary Thornberry Larry Hotchkiss Irina Krop Kenji Yoshida Arthur B. Sanders Paul Coen Robert Jackson Melanie L. Maurer

Harry P.M. Heemskerk

Dorothy H. Clayton Stuart Karabenick Patrick Moriarty Robert Danziger Solange Simoes

Michael Martinez Stephen Holloway Aubrey Jewett Jay DeSart Kevin Hill Mitch Sanders Lyn MacCorkle Joe Floyd James P. McCabe Robert J. Friedrich

Bruno Cautres Greg Guagnano George Washington University Georgetown University University of Georgia Georgia Institute of Technology Georgia Southern University Georgia State University German National Membership:

*Zentralarchiv für Empirische Sozialforschung, Universität zu Köln Institut für politische Wissenschaft der Christian-Albrechts Universität Institut für Sozialwissenschaften an der Universität Mannheim Sozialwissenschaftliches Forschungsinstitut der

Konrad-Adenauer-Stiftung

Gettysburg College Hartwick College Harvard University Haverford College University of Hawaii University of Hong Kong Hong Kong Baptist University

Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

University of Houston Howard University

Hungarian National Membership:

*Tarsadalomkutatasi Informatikai Egyesules, TARKI

University of Illinois, Chicago University of Illinois at Springfield University of Illinois, Urbana-Champaign Illinois State University Illinois Wesleyan University

Indiana Federation:
Indiana University

Indiana University-Purdue University, Indianapolis

Instituto Juan March University of Iowa Iowa State University Israeli National Membership *Hebrew University Bar-Ilan University Ben-Gurion University

Haifa University
Tel-Aviv University
Jackson State University
James Madison University
Johns Hopkins University
University of Kansas
Kansas State University

Kansas State University Keio University Kent State University University of Kentucky Kobe University

Korean National Membership: *Korean Social Science Data Center Kyoto University of Foreign Studies

Láfayette College Library of Congress Louisiana State University University of Louisville Loyola College in Maryland Loyola Marymount University Loyola University of Chicago

Loyola University of New Orleans

Marquette University

University of Maryland, Baltimore County University of Maryland, College Park

Massachusetts Federation:

*University of Massachusetts, Amherst University of Massachusetts, Boston

Smith College

Massachusetts General Hospital Institute of Health Professions

Massachusetts Institute of Technology

University of Memphis Merrimack College Miami University Lee Sigelman Clyde Wilcox Bucilla Hawks-Bradley Terry Blum Howard M. Kaplan David L. Sjoquist

Harald Rohlinger

William P. Wilson Peter Paluch William Wei David Schaffer Gerard Russo John Bacon-Shone Y.C. Ng Julianna Wong Raymond Duch

Rodney Green

Tamas Rudas Thomas Carsey Calvin Mouw Dawn Owens-Nicholson Vanette M. Schwartz Frank Boyd

Duane Schau Cindy Stokes Martha Peach Arthur H. Miller Patricia Keith

Michal Peleg

Betty Ward-Fletcher Robert Brookshire Sharon Morris Roger Anderson Leonard Bloomquist Yasuki Kaneko Laura M. Bartolo Robert A. Aken Ichiro Tokutsu

NamYoung Lee Ichiro Akano Donald Chambers Royce Crocker Forrest A. Deseran Lisa Russell Mark F. Peyrot Michael Carty John Frendreis Daniel Blewett Dee Wood Harper, Jr. Duane Swank Nicholas R. Miller Marie Gates

Douglas L. Anderton Jie Chen Howard Gold Mary Carey Theresa Tobin John E. Evans He Li Nonny Schlotzhauer University of Michigan Michigan State University Middlebury College

Middle Tennessee State University

Milken Institute for Job and Capital Formation

University of Minnesota

Minnesota State University Federation:

*Mankato State University University of Minnesota at Morris Moorhead State University St. Cloud State University Southwest State University Winona State University

University of Mississippi Mississippi State University University of Missouri, Columbia University of Missouri, Kansas City University of Missouri, St. Louis Nassau Community College National Chengchi University

University of Nebraska, Lincoln University of Nevada, Reno University of New Hampshire

University of New Mexico University of New Orleans New School for Social Research

New York University University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill University of North Carolina, Charlotte University of North Carolina, Greensboro

North Carolina State University Northeastern University Northern Arizona University Northern Illinois University Northwestern University

Norwegian National Membership:

*Norwegian Social Science Data Services

Bergen University University of Oslo University of Tromsoe University of Trondheim University of Notre Dame Oberlin College

Occidental College OCUL/CREQUQ Federation—Ontario College and University Libraries: *University of Toronto

Carleton University University of Guelph Université Laval McGill University McMaster University
Queen's University Ryerson Polytechnic Université de Montreal University of Ottawa University of Waterloo

University of Western Ontario Ohio University Ohio State University University of Oklahoma University of Oregon Oregon State University Pace University University of the Pacific Université de Paris I

Pennsylvania State University Philadelphia Federation: *University of Pennsylvania Bryn Mawr College Villanova University West Chester University University of Pittsburgh

Robert Franzese, Jr. Darren Davis Patricia Gray Lucinda Lea Karin Petersen Hsiao William H. Flanigan

Gregg Asher Greg Thorson Les Bakke Randy Kolb Duane Herrick Dan Pecarina Royce Kurtz Xiaohe Xu Rhonda Whithaus Cynthia Churchwell Andrew Glassberg William Feigelman Ching-hsin Yu Judy Johnson Patrick Ragains Meredith Ricker John M. Roberts John K. Wildgen , David Perry Robert Yaffee Diane Ramsev Dawn Hubbs Lee Bernick Steven Morris John F. McDevitt James M. Armour Harvey Smith Ann Janda

Biorn Henrichsen

David A. Cole Luis Fernandez Manuel Pastor

Laine Ruus Wendy Watkins John Stewart Gaetan Drolet Susan Czarnocki Charlotte Stewart Jeffrey Moon Sue Giles

Christiane Robert Guertin

Leslie Weir Susan Moskal S. Vincent Gray Laura Windsor Herbert Weisberg David R. Morgan Cathleen Leue Judy Cross

Lawrence A. Kittinger Lee C. Fennell Patrice Gaubert Christine Avery

Patricia Hildebrand Susan Turkel Brian lones Frank Schnell Philip Sidel Li Tong

Polish National Membership: *University of Warsaw Pontifical Catholic of Peru Portland State University Public Policy Institute of California Princeton University University of Puget Sound Purdue University RAND Corporation Reed College University of Rhode Island Rice University Ritsumeikan Úniversity Robert Wood Johnson Foundation University of Rochester Rochester Institute of Technology Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey Saint Anselm College Saint Louis University Sam Houston State University University of San Diego Santa Clara University Sejong Institute Siena College Social Weather Stations, Inc. South African National Membership: *South African Data Archive University of South Alabama University of South Carolina Southern Illinois University, Carbondale Southern Illinois University, Edwardsville Southern Methodist University Southern University, Baton Rouge Southwest Missouri State University Spanish National Membership: *Centro de Investigaciones Sociologicas Spelman College Stanford University
State University of New York, Albany State University of New York, Binghamton State University of New York, Buffalo State University of New York, Stony Brook Swarthmore College Swedish National Membership: *Swedish Social Science Data Service Göteborg University Linkoping University Lund University Stockholm University Umea University Uppsala University Swiss National Membership: Graduate Institute for International Studies University of Geneva University of Zurich Syracuse University Taylor University Temple University University of Tennessee, Knoxville University of Texas, Arlington University of Texas, Austin University of Texas, Dallas University of Texas, San Antonio University of North Texas Texas A& M University Texas Tech University University of Tokyo University of Toledo Trinity College Tufts University Tulane University Union College United Kingdom National Membership:

*E.S.R.C. Archives, Essex

Grazyna Wieczorkowska-Nejtardt Catalina Romero David A. Smeltzer Jeff Carwile Judith S. Rowe Peggy Firman James McCann Susan Adler John Pock Carole Miller John Alford Yoshikazu Sato Maureen Michael Richard G. Niemi William J. Daniels Scott Bilder Frank Gallant Shirin Jamasb Dennis Longmire Steven Staninger Marilyn Fernandez Bae-Ho Hahn Salvatore Lombardo Rumelia CE. Mangalindan

Maseka Lesaoana Marc Matre Cecelia Farach Vincent Lacey John V. Farrell Dennis Simon Phillip Ardoin Karen Horny

Pilar Del Castillo Vera Carl Hendrickson Paul Zarins Eleanor Gossen Diane Geraci Leslie McCain Lisa McNamara Gudmund R. Iversen

Lennart Brantgarde

Urs Luterbacher Eugene Horber Andree Helminger George Abbott R. Philip Loy David Elesh Jane Row Michael Moore Brian E. Roberts Kurt J. Beron Richard Harris Philip Baczewski **Bradd Epps** Theresa K. Trost Hiroki Sato Robert Martin Noreen Channels **Durwood Marshall** J. Timmons Roberts Theodore Gilman

Kathy Sayer

ORGANIZATION & ADMINISTRATION

United States Naval Academy Ursinus College University of Utah Utah State University Vanderbilt University Vassar College University of Vermont Virginia Commonwealth University Virginia Federation: *University of Virginia College of William and Mary Mary Washington College Old Dominion University Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Wake Forest University University of Washington Washington State University Washington University
Wayne State University
Wellesley College
Wesleyan University West Virginia University Western Illinois University Western Kentucky University Western Michigan University Western Washington University Wheaton College Wichita State University Williams College University of Wisconsin, Eau Claire University of Wisconsin, Madison University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee University of Wisconsin, Parkside Wittenberg University Wright State University University of Wyoming Yale University

Eloise Malone Heather O'Neill Mathew Burbank Lori Hunter Mary Dietrich James Fitzwilliam Jim Cruise Scott Keeter

Patrick Yott Ronald Rapoport Stephen Farnsworth Stephen Medvic David Beagle Catherine T. Harris Fred Nick Siegfried H. Vogt William Olbrich Kurt Metzger Claire Loranz Patricia Curley **Bob Duval** Donna Goehner I.I. Sloan Julie Scott Carl Simpson Lyman Kellstedt Brian W. Williams David Booth lames Oberly Cindy Severt Thomas Holbrook Peggy James John R. Baker Carol Brown Gary D. Hampe Jocelyn Tipton

^{*} Contact institution

Constitution Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

[September 28, 1998]

Preamble

The Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research is an organization of member institutions founded at the University of Michigan in 1962. This Constitution and the accompanying Bylaws establish the organizational identity for ICPSR. The Bylaws authorize ICPSR to affiliate for specific purposes with a host institution.

Article I. Name

This organization will be called the Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research (ICPSR).

Article II. Purposes

The purposes of the ICPSR are to promote and facilitate research and instruction in the social sciences and related areas, by acquiring, developing, archiving, and disseminating data and documentation for instruction and research; conducting related instructional programs; conducting such other activities as may be authorized in accord with the Bylaws; and obtaining the resources necessary to accomplish these purposes.

Article III. Membership

The eligible membership of ICPSR includes: (1) institutions of higher education, units within institutions of higher education, and federations of educational institutions; and (2) such institutions and organizations as may subsequently be designated in accord with the Bylaws. Categories of membership will be designated in the Bylaws. Services will be provided to members and others in accord with the Bylaws.

Article IV. Governance

Each member will be represented by an Official Representative chosen by the member. Representation arrangements for federations and national memberships will be set forth in the Bylaws. The membership through the Official Representatives will elect a Council to serve as the Executive Committee of the membership, with authority to act on behalf of the member institutions, employ personnel, enter into contracts, and carry out activities to execute the purposes specified in Article II. The composition, election, and organization of the Council will be set forth in the Bylaws.

Article V. Voting Rights

Each member in good standing, as specified in the Bylaws, will have one vote, to be cast by the Official Representative designated by the member.

Article VI. Meetings

The Council will hold regular and special meetings as provided in the Bylaws, but no less than once a year. The Official Representatives will meet at regular intervals as provided in the Bylaws.

Article VII. Dues

The Council will establish annual membership dues, which may vary according to category of membership and be separately negotiated for each federation and national membership. Members must be notified one year in advance of an increase in dues.

Article VIII. Fiscal Policies

Membership dues are to be used exclusively to finance activities and services on behalf of member institutions in accord with the purposes specified in Article II. Under the direction and with the approval of the Council, and congruent with its purposes, ICPSR may charge fees and seek and expend funds in addition to membership dues.

Article IX. Bylaws

ICPSR may adopt Bylaws, consistent with this Constitution, for the conduct of its affairs. Bylaws may be enacted, amended, or repealed: (1) by a two-thirds majority vote of all members of the Council eligible to vote, at a meeting of the Council or in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 30 days; or (2) by a majority vote of the Official Representatives eligible to vote, in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 90 days.

Article X. Amendments

Proposals to amend the Constitution may be initiated by majority vote of the Council or by a petition presented to the Council signed by Official Representatives of at least 25 member institutions. Amendments may be adopted by a two-thirds majority vote of the Official Representatives eligible to vote, in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 90 days.

Article XI. Ratification

This Constitution becomes effective when adopted by a two-thirds majority vote of all members of the Council eligible to vote.

Bylaws Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

[October 20, 1998]

Preamble

These Bylaws are authorized by the Constitution of the ICPSR.

Article I. Membership

1. Conditions of Membership

A. Members will be assigned to categories based upon the member's size, program, and location. If the membership is formally held by a department or other unit, the characteristics of the entire university or organization will be considered in assigning a membership category. Guidelines for membership categories are:

Category A: Educational institutions with doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas.

Category B: Undergraduate institutions without doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas and with enrollments of 2,500 or more students.

Category S: Colleges without doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas and with enrollments of fewer than 2,500 students.

Category C: Institutions in developing countries.

Categories F and N: Federated and national memberships consist of a number of institutions in categories A, B, C, and S that have joined together around a common link to the ICPSR. The common link is responsible for distributing data and documentation from the ICPSR to the other members. Dues are assessed based on the actual configuration of memberships.

- **B.** Not-for-profit research organizations having a clearly defined educational mission may, with approval of the Council, become members of ICPSR and be assigned to a membership category.
- C. Internal arrangements bearing upon the sources of financial support for the membership are the responsibility of the member. Each member is responsible for determining the eligibility of its faculty, staff, and students for participation in ICPSR activities.
- **D.** Associate Membership may be requested by other not-for-profit organizations having a clearly defined educational mission. Provision of services and appropriate dues will be set by Council. Associate membership does not carry voting privileges.
- **E.** Membership should be sought only with the expectation that benefits accrue with continuing participation. Short-term memberships are discouraged. Officials of member institutions agree to attempt to provide the necessary dues and local support on a continuing basis.
- **F.** Annual membership dues shall be paid by July 1 or at the beginning of such alternative annual membership cycle as may be agreed upon by individual members and ICPSR. Budgetary inability to meet a single year's membership dues will not necessitate termination of membership provided that the member is willing to make up the deficit across an agreed upon period not to exceed five years.
- **G.** A member may withdraw from membership after one year's written notice mailed to the Executive Director. Except under special circumstances, the ICPSR will require that use of all materials provided by ICPSR, including data and documentation, be discontinued upon termination of membership.
- **H.** A member may rejoin the ICPSR after dropping its membership. Payment of a re-entry fee of 50 percent of the annual dues in effect at the time of rejoining will normally be required. This fee is in addition to membership dues from the date of rejoining.

2. Benefits and Obligations of Membership

- **A.** The ICPSR staff will endeavor to provide equitable services to each member. Given the variety of functions, the limitations on time and space in the performance of some activities, and the variable pace of research activities at member institutions, the goal shall be equality in service over a period of years.
- **B.** Members will not distribute data or other materials supplied by ICPSR to other members, organizations, or individuals at other institutions, without the written agreement of ICPSR.
- C. Member institutions agree that data and other materials provided by ICPSR are to be used solely for statistical analysis and reporting of aggregated information, and not for investigation of specific individuals or organizations, except when identification is authorized in writing by ICPSR. Each member institution gives assurance that such uses of statistical data will conform to widely-accepted standards of practice and legal restrictions that are intended to protect the confidentiality of research subjects.
- **D.** Books, articles, conference papers, theses, dissertations, and other publications or reports that employ data or other resources provided by ICPSR should cite both original data collectors and ICPSR as the source, in accord with recommended citation procedures for computer files in the social sciences.
- **E.** Individuals who collect data or develop other research or instructional resources of general interest to the social science community are encouraged to make such resources available to the membership by offering them for deposit with ICPSR.
- **F.** Member institutions, through their Official Representatives, have the right to express concerns and complaints about services to the Executive Director, and if a matter is not satisfactorily resolved to file a grievance with Council. Council will investigate grievances and take such action as may be appropriate.

3. Services for Nonmembers

- **A.** ICPSR data and documentation will be provided to individuals who are not affiliated with a member institution. Such individuals requesting data for their research or instructional use will sign a loan agreement, and submit payment for charges assessed, before data are provided. ICPSR data and documentation may be provided to nonmember organizations on a basis negotiated by the organization and the Executive Director and approved by Council. Resources made available by ICPSR to nonmembers shall not be redistributed or sold to other individuals or organizations without the written agreement of ICPSR.
- **B.** Participation in ICPSR training functions or special research conferences supported solely by membership dues will be limited to students, faculty, and staff from member institutions, unless exceptions are authorized by Council or the Executive Director.
- C. ICPSR may enter into annual subscription agreements with nonmember institutions, including for-profit institutions, for the purpose of providing access to ICPSR data resources and user support for all staff of the subscribing institution. These agreements will carry annual dues commensurate with dues charged to members, according to a scale established by the ICPSR Council and annually reviewed by the Council. No privileges of membership other than data access and user support will be provided under these agreements, and subscribers are ineligible to participate in the governance of ICPSR.
- **D.** Upon recommendation of the Executive Director and approval of the ICPSR Council, ICPSR may enter into Education Partnerships with private publishers for the purpose of enabling instruction in the social and behavioral sciences. Fees, requirements, and procedures for Education Partners will be determined by the ICPSR Council in consultation with the Executive Director.

Article II. Official Representatives

Each member, including each national membership and each participant in a federation, will be represented by an Official Representative chosen by the member. The Official Representative serves as the liaison between ICPSR and the member and represents the member at meetings of Official Representatives. A member may designate a second Official Representative to aid in the provision of services to the member or membership and to attend meetings of Official Representatives. Special representation arrangements for a national membership or federation may be negotiated by ICPSR Senior Staff and approved by the Council.

Article III. Council

1. Membership

The Council of the ICPSR consists of twelve persons elected by the membership. Six new Council members will be elected every two years to serve four-year terms. The Council will include the past Council Chairperson as an exofficio nonvoting member.

2. Duties

- **A.** The Council is the Executive Committee of the membership and the governing body of the ICPSR. The Council is authorized to act on behalf of the ICPSR. The Council participates in the definition of organizational objectives and in the determination of policies to achieve those objectives. It is authorized to affiliate with other organizations for the purpose of developing organizational and fiscal arrangements of benefit to the ICPSR and its members. Actions taken on behalf of the ICPSR by ICPSR staff or staff of organizations with which the ICPSR is affiliated are subject to Council review.
- **B.** The Council will establish policies and procedures for approving activities to be carried out on behalf of the ICPSR, such as seeking grants, contracts, and other outside financial support, collaborating or participating in committees and studies, and undertaking a major data collection.
- **C.** The Council will establish policies regulating the participation of individuals in training programs and other activities for which limited resources preclude the simultaneous participation of all who might be interested.
- **D.** The Council will receive an annual report from the Executive Director and Senior Staff. The report will review and project ICPSR activities, revenues, and expenditures for the past year, current year, and coming year. The Council will transmit a summary of this report along with any recommendations it may have to the Official Representatives. The Council may request, and is entitled to receive, any additional information it deems useful concerning the operations and fiscal affairs of the ICPSR.

3. Meetings

The Council will normally hold three regular meetings each year. A special meeting of the Council may be called by the Chairperson, the Executive Director, six members of the Council, or other persons as agreed to by the Council. Seven members of the Council will constitute a quorum for Council action. The Executive Director, Senior Staff of ICPSR, a representative of the host organization with which the ICPSR has affiliated, and invited guests may attend open sessions of Council meetings. The Council may hold closed or executive sessions for specific purposes.

Article IV. Officers of the Council

1. Chairperson

- **A.** The Chairperson of the Council will be elected by the membership (see Article VI). The Chairperson will normally be nominated from among the Council members who will be serving the third year of their term and will serve a two-year term as Chairperson.
- **B.** The Chairperson is responsible for signing documents on behalf of the Council. The Chairperson will act as a liaison between the Executive Director and the Council and as a liaison between the Director of the host organization with which ICPSR is affiliated and the Council. The Chairperson will normally chair meetings of Official Representatives.
- C. The Council may appoint an acting Chairperson to serve when the Chairperson is not available to execute duties of the Chair.

2. Other Officers

The Council may designate and appoint other officers to carry out duties of the Council.

Article V. Past Chairperson of the Council

The immediate past Chairperson of the Council will serve as an ex-officio member of the Council for a period of one year.

Article VI. Elections

1. Nomination

- **A.** The Nominating Committee for elections to the Council will be composed of the Council Chairperson serving as chair of the Committee, the other Council members serving in the final half of their terms, and at least two individuals not currently members of the Council designated by the Council Chairperson.
- **B.** The Chairperson, acting on behalf of the Committee, will solicit nominations from Council members, Official Representatives, the ICPSR Executive Director and Senior Staff, and the responsible executive official of the host institution. Nominees must be from member institutions. The Executive Director will gather and present to the nominating committee information on potential candidates. The Nominating Committee will present to the Official Representatives the names of a proposed Chairperson (see Article IV, Section 1) and nominees to the Council, with adequate time to allow additional nominations by Official Representatives in accord with stated procedures determined by the Council.

2. Election

- **A.** Ballots will be mailed to those Official Representatives eligible to vote. Election to each position will be by majority vote among votes properly cast for that position.
- **B.** The Council, by two-thirds vote of its members, may remove a member from Council for cause, such as persistent nonperformance of duties.
- **C.** Vacancies that occur on the Council or in the office of the Council Chairperson between elections will be filled through appointment by the Council.

3. Terms of Office

The newly elected Council members and the newly elected Council Chairperson will assume office at the first regular meeting following the election and will serve until the beginning of the first regular meeting after their successors have been elected.

Article VII. Committees

The Council has the authority to create standing committees. The Chairperson, in consultation with the Council, will make appointments to standing committees. A standing committee will normally include at least one member of the Council. The Chairperson may establish and make appointments to ad hoc committees.

Article VIII. Executive Director and Senior Staff

1. Positions

The chief executive officer of the ICPSR is the Executive Director. The ICPSR staff will consist of such personnel as are necessary for ICPSR to perform the activities required to fulfill its constitutionally defined purposes and meet its obligations to its membership and Council. The Executive Director may designate, with consent of Council, selected managerial, supervisory, and professional personnel as ICPSR Senior Staff. The Executive Director, and the Senior Staff through the Executive Director, are responsible to the Council for the conduct of ICPSR affairs and to the host institution for adherence to its rules and regulations.

2. Evaluation

The Chairperson and other Council members designated by the Council are authorized to participate, along with responsible officials of the host institution, in the evaluation of job performance and recommendations for merit raises and promotion of the Executive Director and the Senior Staff. The Executive Director and the Senior Staff have the right to file job and other grievances with the Council. The Council will receive and investigate such grievances and take such action as may be appropriate within its authority. These provisions do not preclude or preempt use by the Executive Director and Senior Staff of normal grievance procedures of the host institution. Upon request, the Council may participate on behalf of the Executive Director or Senior Staff in grievance proceedings of the host institution in accord with the regulations of the host institution.

3. Access to Council

The Executive Director and Senior Staff, individually and collectively, have the right to bring issues and concerns to the Council Chairperson, the chairperson of a Council committee, or an individual member of Council. If formal Council response or action is requested or required, the matter will be communicated in writing to the Chairperson. The Council may establish investigative and grievance procedures to protect individual rights and assure fair and prompt response.

Article IX. Institutional Affiliations

The ICPSR Council is authorized to adopt one or more Memoranda of Agreement that affiliate the ICPSR with a host institution. A Memorandum of Agreement may designate the host institution to serve as fiscal agent for the ICPSR. All affiliation agreements shall be reviewed by the Council at regular intervals. An affiliation with a host institution may be terminated by the Council in accord with provisions of an operative Memorandum of Agreement.

Memorandum of Agreement

[October 20, 1998]

Definitions:

- "The Consortium" means the organization formed by the member institutions comprising the Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research through its Constitution and Bylaws.
- "University" means the University of Michigan.
- "ISR" means the Institute for Social Research at the University.
- "ICPSR" means the programs and staff of the Consortium located at the University operating under this Agreement.
- "ICPSR Staff" means employees of the University who are hired or appointed expressly for the activities of ICPSR.
- "ICPSR Management Staff" means ICPSR Staff récommended by the Executive Director and so designated by the Director.
- "Council" means the Council elected by the Consortium as its governing body.
- "Director" means the Director of ISR.
- "Chair" means the Chair of the Council.
- "Executive Director" means the Executive Director of ICPSR.

Preamble

The Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research and the Regents of the University of Michigan, acting on behalf of their Institute for Social Research, enter into an agreement of affiliation to assist the Consortium to fulfill its constitutionally defined purposes and meet its obligations to its membership. This affiliation allows ICPSR to function within the Institute for Social Research, in accord with the terms of this Memorandum.

Section I. Fiscal Relationship

1. Fiscal Agent

The Regents of the University, acting through ISR, will serve as the fiscal agent of the ICPSR. All financial and administrative actions taken by the ICPSR shall be governed by the policies and procedures of the University.

2. Revenues

Revenues shall be attributed to the ICPSR on the same basis as for ISR centers. These revenues may be invested in interest bearing accounts. The modalities for investing ICPSR funds shall be determined by the appropriate administrative and fiscal officers in accordance with University investment practices.

Membership dues will be handled, within the fiscal regulations of the University, as expendable restricted funds.

Grants and contracts will be handled as expendable restricted or federal funds depending on the source of funds. Federal grants for ICPSR will utilize the University's negotiated indirect cost recovery rate unless ICPSR requests a waiver of some portion of the indirect cost recovery within the approved guidelines of ISR and the University of Michigan. Indirect cost recovery for other grants and contracts must follow the rules and regulations of the University of Michigan, ISR, and the sponsor.

Tuition from students earning University credit for courses commissioned by ICPSR will be credited to ICPSR on the same basis as allowed by the University and ISR for other tuition attributions.

Other types of revenue shall be handled in a manner consistent with University and ISR rules and regulations.

3. Indirect Costs and Assessments

Indirect costs on all ICPSR expenditures shall be assessed according to usual ISR and University procedures. ICPSR is also responsible for contributing to ISR/University expenses. These costs are determined by an annual Institute budget which is reviewed by the ISR Policy Committee and approved by the Director and the ISR Executive Committee.

4. Open Record

The financial records of ICPSR shall be fully open to inspection by the Council or its designee, acting in its role providing oversight of the management of ICPSR on behalf of the membership. The Council will also have access to the public financial records of ISR.

5. Discretionary Funds

ICPSR shall have access to ISR discretionary funds under the normal ISR procedures governing the use of these funds.

6. Required Reserves

ICPSR shall maintain an equity balance equivalent to three months of normal personnel expenditures and projected termination costs. In the event of the closing of ICPSR at the University, all of ICPSR's reserves may be utilized to cover financial obligations incurred by ICPSR. Any remaining funds shall be returned to the Consortium.

7. Annual Budgets

Annual budgets are prepared by the Executive Director in consultation with the Council and approved by ISR for compliance with ISR and University regulations as well as for soundness prior to submission to the Council for approval. Council may approve the budget in part or in the whole. If the budget is not approved in the whole or in part, the Executive Director will prepare another budget to meet the Council's objections. That budget will be reviewed for compliance and soundness by ISR and presented to the Council for approval. If a second budget is not approved by the Council, Council shall be deemed to have given one year's notice of its intent to terminate this agreement. ICPSR will operate during the ensuing year on a budget mutually agreed upon by the Director and the Chair.

8. Agreement with Third Parties

ICPSR and the Executive Director shall not enter into any third-party agreements concerning ICPSR that are inconsistent with the terms of this Memorandum or that require the provision or use of personnel, services, or facilities of ISR or the University without express approval of the appropriate University representative.

Section II. Responsibilities of ISR

1. Administrative Services

ISR will provide administrative and fiscal oversight for ICPSR in the same manner as provided to ISR centers. ICPSR will have administrative and supervisory staff and administrative arrangements to carry out the financial, administrative, and human resource responsibilities of ICPSR. Such staff and arrangements must be acceptable to the Director.

ICPSR will be provided financial reports using the framework of University and ISR financial reports. These are not required by the Consortium to be specifically audited by the University, but the overall University financial reports and accounting are audited annually and the ICPSR financial accounts may be audited by the University at its sole discretion.

2. Space and Other Resources

ISR will provide space, services, and resources to ICPSR using the same policies and procedures as for other units within ISR.

3. Attendance at ICPSR Meetings

The Director or a person designated by the Director is invited to attend the meetings of the ICPSR Council and of the Official Representatives of member institutions. The ISR designee will not be a voting member at such meetings.

Section III. ICPSR Personnel

1. The Executive Director

A. Appointment. Upon selection by the Council, the Executive Director shall be appointed as an employee of the University by the Director for a fixed term not to exceed five years. Reappointment for additional terms is possible.

B. End-of-Term Performance Review. Approximately one year prior to the conclusion of an incumbent Executive Director's term of office, a Performance Review Committee will be established by the Director. The Committee will in-

clude two members from the Research Scientists ranks of the ISR appointed by the Director, one member of the ICPSR Management Staff elected by that staff, and two members of the Council appointed by the Chair. The Review Committee will assess the Executive Director's leadership of the ICPSR within the context of its programmatic mission, fiscal environment, and scientific future. The Performance Review Committee will then decide whether the current Executive Director should be reappointed and report their recommendation to the Director. The Director will review the recommendation and forward it, along with his concurrence or dissent, to the Council. Council will then decide whether to mandate a search.

- C. Search Committee. If the Council mandates a search for a new Executive Director, or upon the occurrence of a vacancy in the office, a Search Committee will be formed by the Chair. Two members of the committee will be chosen by the ISR Policy Committee, two by the Council, and one by the Management Staff. The Committee will prepare a statement of qualifications for the position. The statement will be reviewed by the Director and the Chair. The Committee will then initiate the search. The mechanics of the search for candidates will be conducted through the Director's office in accordance with University and State of Michigan laws, procedures, and personnel regulations. The Search Committee will receive the names and submitted materials from candidates uncovered in the search and report to the Council and the Director. The report will include the names of two or more nominees recommended for appointment.
- **D. Appointment Process.** In consultation with the Director, Council will select a candidate from among the several nominees. An offer to the selected candidate will be made by the Director. The Director will determine the salary and the kind of appointment to be offered and will conduct all negotiations with candidates. If the selected candidate declines the position, Council, in consultation with the director, will decide if one among the remaining nominees of the Search Committee is appropriate and the Director will make her/him an offer. Alternatively, Council may ask the Search Committee to produce additional nominations. This process of searching, selecting, and offering will proceed until a candidate accepts the position.
- **E. Annual Salary Review.** A review of the job performance of the Executive Director in meeting the missions and goals of the ICPSR will be carried out by the Director annually. The Director will inform the Chair about the nature of the review and will establish merit increments in salary and other changes in remuneration in accord with ISR and University practices.
- **F. Interim Appointment.** If the position of Executive Director becomes vacant, the Director will appoint an Interim or Acting Executive Director. An interim or acting appointment will be for no more than one year, but such appointments may be extended for up to one additional year with the agreement of the Chair.

2. ICPSR Staff

- **A. Appointment.** ICPSR staff are appointed as members and employees of the University in its ISR. The Executive Director appoints the ICPSR Staff. Appointments are subject to the processes of review and approval by ISR and University personnel officers that are usual for the type of appointment.
- **B. Performance Evaluation and Remuneration.** Evaluation and remuneration of ICPSR staff will be based upon the job performance of these employees in meeting the missions and goals of the ICPSR. For an individual with a joint appointment outside ICPSR, performance in meeting ICPSR responsibilities and performance in meeting responsibilities with one or more other appointments will be reviewed separately and independently. The combined results of these reviews will provide the basis for determining an aggregate performance evaluation and remuneration. The University of Michigan is solely responsible for all personnel decisions regarding ICPSR staff, except as concerns the appointment of the Executive Director, an interim Executive Director, or an acting Executive Director.

Section IV. Authority of the Executive Director and Management Staff

The Executive Director and ICPSR Management Staff are authorized to act on behalf of ISR and the Council in the conduct of ICPSR activities. In so doing, they are subject to normal regulations of ISR and the University and consistent with the Consortium's Constitution and Bylaws. Both the Council and the Director shall be kept fully informed, with the greatest practicable timeliness, with respect to ICPSR activities. ICPSR Management Staff are invited to attend the open sessions of the meetings of the Council. They may contribute to the discussion, help formulate the agenda, and bring issues before the Council.

Section V. Participation in ISR Governance

1. The Executive Director

The Executive Director will serve on the ISR Policy Committee ex officio without vote, unless accorded one by the Committee.

2. Management Staff

Members of the ICPSR Management Staff may vote for or serve as the representative of professional and administrative staff persons on any elective or appointive committees that include professional and administrative staff.

Section VI. Amendment

The terms of this agreement may be amended by concurring majority votes of the ICPSR Council and the ISR Executive Committee. No amendment may be adopted that is inconsistent with or overrides applicable University policy or laws. This agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement, or upon one-year prior written notice by either party.

Section VII. General Provisions

- 1. Neither the University nor ICPSR shall use the name or trademarks of the other except as necessary to fulfill the purposes of the Agreement or in describing the relationship between the organizations in an objective and factual manner or as otherwise expressly approved by the named party.
- 2. In the event of a termination of this agreement, the rights to redistribute data granted by data depositors will remain with the Consortium.
- 3. Fiscal assets and balances remaining after ICPSR obligations are met remain the property of the Consortium. Office and computing equipment and similar property will remain the property of the University.
- 4. The University shall not be responsible for actions of the Consortium or the Council except to the extent such actions are committed within the scope of employment of any University employee.
- 5. Reviews of the activities, policies, and functioning of ICPSR may be carried out by ISR in the course of its usual procedures. The Consortium reserves the right to conduct its own programmatic reviews in a fashion of its choosing. ISR will facilitate any such review to the degree practicable.
- 6. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Michigan.